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Opening Statement - Clark , . 301

child. She seemed always to have a runny nose, and she
had sinus problems. Then she had them on this particular

day which was February the 21st of this year. The

ttestimony will also show from the day care workers that

the mother in their opinion probably wasn't the best
mother in the world because she didn't always bring the
child's medicine, and on that particular day, I believe
she had not brought the child's medicine that Dr. Dax had
prescribed for her teo take, and they were concerned about
her on a regular basis because of Ehe fact that she was a
sickly child and because the mother did not, in their
opinion, properly care for her. Now, about 5:30, Ms.
Britt picked the c¢hild uvp from the day care, went home to
the trailer that she and Jeffrey stayed in which belonged
to his grandparents, as\you know, as you were told by Mr.
Rosenblatt. You also were told that Ms. Britt doesn't
work. That Jeffrey had worked, but he had given up his
job on the river as a deckhand. If you know anything
about working on a river like that, that's quite -- you're
out for a long period of time, usually forty-five to sixty
days. It°s not conducive for a relationship so -- with
another person: Now, about 7:45 that evening, Mr.

Britt -- I mean, Ms. Britt went to Natchez Market to get
groceries as Mr. Rosenblaﬁt told you. That Jeffrey had
given her some money to go get some groceries. She got
back about 8:30. She checked on the baby. The baby
appeared to be fine. Jeffrey gave her $20.00 to go to
Blockbuster.to get movies. She went to Blockbuster. She

got there. She got the movies and came back to the

v
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Opening Statement - Clark 302
trailer about 8:40. About 8:45 she arrived at Blockbuster
and. she was back around 9:00 according to her testimony.
At that time, she checked on Chloe. Chloe was turning
blue. The child was still alive. We believé this
tegtimony will show that she did -- took the baby in the
living room, attempted to do CPR. At that point Jeffrey
said let's go to the hospital and they went. With some
discussion about thch hospital, whether they should go to
tﬁe closest one or if thgy should go to the one that her
mom went to -- that hexr mom worked at. They ended up
going to Natchez Community where her mother worked. They
brought the baby. The baby was examined. I believe the
testimony will show it was about 9:40 that evening the
baby was broughﬁ into the emergency room. At
approximately 10:50, the baby was declared dead. Jeffrey
Havard said in his statement that yvou will hear from

the -- during the courge of the trial that he did give
the baby a bath. The baby was sick that day. Had been
sick, and he gave her a bath. Thought it would calm her
down and make her feel better and she could sleep better.
He was getting the baby out of the tub, and you will see
pictures of this during the course of the trial. It;s a
garden tub which is a rather deep tub in the trailer.
Inside that was another smaller baby tub that she was
actually bathed in. That's where he bathed her, in the
small tub. And then getting her out of the tub, he turned
around and the baby slips. It hits the toiletf Tragic.
No intent to hurt that baby, and what did he do? He did

the best he could. He panicked, but he did the best he
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Opening Statement - Clark 303
could. He tried to talk to the baby. He got the blood
out of her mouth from where she had hit the toilet, and
she became calm after a while, and he took her and put her
in the bed. And as hexr mother testified, and as her
mother will testify, that she came back from the store,
grocery store, and found the baby to be calm in the bhed.
Jeffrey did not intend to kill this child. This was an
accident. He had never given the baby a bath before. He
didn't know what to do and, of course, he did the wrong
thing. He didn't tell anyone about it, but simply because
he didn't tell anyone about it doesn’t mean that it wasn't
an accident, ladies and gentlemen. You will hear
testimony from the witnesses. The State puts on first,
and then you'll hear witnesses that we will put on. In
order for Jeffrey to get a fair trial, you have to listen
to the evidence very attentively as to exactly what
happened on that particular night. You'll hear exactlf
the time sequence, you'll hear exactly what the doctors
and other medical personnel testified to, and we certainly
know that you will do that very attentively. BAnd once you
have heard all the evidence and go back in there to
deliberate, we believe that you will find him not guilty.
Thank you.

BY THE COURT: BAll right. Who does the State

call as your first witness?
BY MR. HARPER: Your Honor, we would call
Sheriff Hilliam T. Fexrell, Junior.
BY THE COURT: All right. Sheriff Ferrell.

BY MR. HARPER: Your Honor, we're calling

b
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Direct Examination - Ferrell ’ 304

Sheriff Ferrell. Re's a little bit out of turm, but
we had anticipated using him -- reguesting that he be
aIIOng to remain in the courtroom as our case agent,
and we understood the problems that might rise under
the rule with him being in here prioxr to testifying.
So we're going to go ahead and call him first, please
the Court.
BY MR. SERMOS: Your Honor, may Mr. Harper and I
approach one moment about that?
BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.
{A bench conference was had about Sheriff Ferrell's
testimony, out of the hearing of the juxry.)
BY THE COURT: If you'll swear the witness.
SHERIFF WILLIAM T. FERRELL, JUNIOR,
having been duly and legally.5worn, angswered
guestions on his oath as follows, to-wit:
BY TﬁE-COURT: If you'll have a seat, please.
BY MR. HARPER: May I proceed, Your Honor?
BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. HARPER:
0. Would you state your name for the record,
please, sir. .
AL Tommy Ferrell, Sheriff, Adams County,
Mississippi.
Q. And, Sheriff Ferxell, how long have you served
as the gsheriff here in Adams County?
A. I was first elected sheriff in the November of

1987. I've been employved as a deputy sheriff since 1969.
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Direct Examination - Ferrell 305

Q. Okay. And obviously you were serﬁing as the

sheriff back on February the 21lst of this year, 2002; is

that correct, sir?

h. Yes, sir. I was.

Q. All right, sir. Did you have occasion to
receive a report concerning an injured child on that
particular day?

A. Yes, sir. I did. At approximately 9:30 p.m. --
I'm serry. At 10:30 p.m. on the evening mentioned,
Pebruary the 2ist of 2002, I received a call at my home
from Major John Manley, a deputy sheriff with the Adams
County Sheriff's Department to the effect that the
sheriff's office was investigating a death of an infant
that had occurred, and the child had been brought into the
local Natchez Communify Hospital, DOA, dead on arrival,
and that officers were at the hospital and that there was
some suspicious involvement involving the child and
reguested that I respond.

Ql Ckay, sir. .And what, in fact, did you do upon
receiving that repoxt?

A, After that initial report at 10:30 p.m. I
responded to the Natchez Regicnal Hospital emergency room
where the officers were located and I met with deputy --
Major John Manley.

Q. Who, if anyone, if you can recall, from your
office was there at the time you arrived?

A, Upon my afrival, I met with Deputy John Manley,
the major in charge of criminal investigations with the

sheriff's office. There were two doctors present. Dr.
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Direct Examination - Ferrell 306

Laurie Patterson and Dr. Cadle, along with nurses of the

emergency room, a Patricia Murray and Sheila Smith along

with-the grandpérents of the deceased child, a Johmny and
Lillian Watson of Ferriday, Louisiana.

Q. All right. Were any of your othexr officers
there, or do you recall whether any other officers were
there at that time?

A. At the immediate moment I arrived, Deputy Buddy
Frank and Deputy Ray Brown had been ordered away from the
hospital. They had removed -- I found out at that time
the -- Rebecca Britt, the mother of the deceased child,
and Jeffrey Havard, the boyfriend, to the sheriff's
office. 8o they were in route to the sheriff's office
upon my arrival.

Q. What, if anything, did you do wheﬁ you got to
the hbspital?

A. After being briefed by the Major John Manley, I
then requested to speak to the attending physicians on
duty at the emergency room. Those that I mentioned, Dr.
Patterson and Dr. Cadle. As I did that, I requested to

view the body of the deceased child. I was brought in the

examination room along with Deputy Manley and myself, and _

I was then shown the body of a six-month-old white female
baby child that was identified to me as Chloe Madison
Britt. I then upon examining --
BY MR. SERMOS: Objection, Your Honor, to
whatever the sheriff found upon examination. We have
physicians or nurses that can testify as to what was

found --

e
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Direct Examination - Ferrell

BY MR. HARPER: Your Honor --

a lay person to what he observed as a lay person.
?Y MR. HARPER:

Q. If I may, Sheriff, I believe you testified you
#ave been in law enforcement since 19697

A. That's correct.

Q. And during the course of that time, how much of
that time have you gpent in felony investigations?

A. My entire career.

Q. And roughly how many murder investigations have
you been involved in during that period of time?

A. - Over -- well over a hundred.

Q. Okay, sir. And, of course, vyou are not a
%edical personnel, but based on your experience and
training as a law enforcement officer, what observations
did you perscnally make as to the body at the time that
you saw the child there at the hospital?

A. Dr. Patterson was the explaining phyéician upon
ty request of showing me the body. Upon viewing the body
?t the time and the descriptions, 1 observed bruises on
ghe forehead and the facial area of the small infant
Jhild. I detected that the -- I was shown trauma. I saw
ffrauma to the anal area and --

Q. When you saw trauma, Sheriff, just as best you
dan in laymen's texrms, what did you chserve?

:A. In laymen's terms, trauma that I described is
qescribed as tears, rips, torn, obvious invasion of the

dnal area.

BY THE COURT: I'll allow him to just testify as

[T




LASEA BOND EORMA @ PENGAD + 1:B00-531-5989 + wiw porigad.com

i0

11

12

13

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

29

- Pirect Examination - Ferrell 308

Q. You could wvisually see that yourself?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Okay, sir.

A. I also saw secretions that were still visible

F YOt Ehe damaged area as the area was pointed to me by the
goctor. 1 then obsexrved -- 1 mentioned earlier bruises on .
the forehead and the facial area. The child that I
pbserved was lying on her back on the examination table.
he was nude except for a disposable diaper that partially
tovering a portion of the body. I asked for the diaper to
be removed so that I could see the child and the body.
After examining, obviously the trauma to the anal area and
ro the forehead of the child, I then cbserved the mouth
?rea of the child. The child's left side of the mouth
seemed to have trauma or a tear on the left side of the
pouth. There was secretion coming from the nasal area of
the child. Obvicusly the secretion coming from the nose

had been wiped away from the face. I was informed by the

octor that CPR had been administered upon the arrival of
he child, continuously from the first observation which

- but regardless of that, I could still see the
ecretions coming from the nose. If the mouth was open
For me, I could see inside the mouth and observed what I
fetermined in laymen's terms to be trauma or some
Indication that thexe had be someﬁhing in the child's
pouth.

Q. Okay, sir. After you had an opportunity to
¢bserve the child's body, what did you do at that point in

time?
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A, After the examination, I then ordered
photographs taken of the body by Deputy John Manley and
another deputy, Deputy Buddy Frank who was redispatched to
-he hospital to bring an additional camera, and after

the -- I ordered the photos taken of the body, I then
ingstructed Deputy Manley to immediately contact the
coroner, James Lee of Adams County, Mississippi. Summonéd
him to the scene. He had been summoned while I was in
route. I instructed Coroner Lee to seize the body and
have the body transported immediately for autopsy due to
the nature of the suspicious investigation. I requested
that the body be sent to the state crime lab or be -- I am
sorry. To be examined by the State Medical Examiner in
Jackson, Mississippi, because of the sericusness of the
charge. We then -- I then ordered the emergency room
personnel and doctors to allow me to seize all of the
materials, physical materials, the sheets, the diaper,
every piece of material that the child had been in contact
with at the hespital for seizure for criminal evidence to
be transported to the state crime lab.

Q. Okay, sir. And after having done those things,
what, if anything, did you do, if anything, at the
hospital at that point?

A. After the seizure of the physical evidence and
the,bbdy and I determined that the body was secured by
James Lee, the coroner, and was actually plaéed in the van
to be transported, I then left the hospital and went to my
office at the Adams County Sheriff's office.

Q. And what, if anything, did you do when you got

Direct Examination - Ferrell: 309

O
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irect Examination - Ferrell
ro the sheriff's office?
A, When 1 arrived at the sheriff's office, I

instructed the officers that had transported Jeffrey to

place a charge of -- potential charge of capital murder,
Hold him for capital murder investigation at that

particular point. I then instructed the office while I

as en route to put me in contact with the District’
ttorney, Ronnie Harper, yourself, so that I could share

the inforwation with him that we were determining the

3investigation to determine if there was enough evidence

for a charge on Jeffrey Havard. That, in fact, was done

ffhat had been presented to me and the invesfigation that
was ensuing to hold Jeffrey Havard for investigaﬁion of
gapital murder.

Q. Okay, sir. And was this prior to arriving at

‘the sheriff's office or in transit, or was it after you

Had arrived there?

ﬂet together.

Q. Okay, sir.

‘A.. As the district attorney you had been summoned

[}

rom your home and met me at the hospital where we had
conferred on the information that I had at the time.

Q. Okay, sir. What, if anytﬁing, else did you do

A. Once we had determined that we would hold for

the investigation, I then instructed the officers to have

A. When I arrived there, 1 was met by ~- you and I

310

che sheriff's office and placed him in the holding cell to

gnd I conferred with the district attorney on the evidence

once you and I had talked. What did you do at that point?

o
. v
oL
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Pirect Examination - Fexrrell

Rebecca Britt, the mother of deceased, brought to my
hffice for interrogation. And I, at that time,
interrogated Rebecca Britt, the mother of the deceaseqd
rhild, to determine the facts leading up to the death and
"he potential reason of the death for the infant.

Q. Okay, sir. You talked with Ms. Britt yourself?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know whether or not statements wexe

subsequently taken from her as to what her --

A. Yes, sir.
Q. Ckay.
A. Statements were subsequently taken of what she

caid and the details leading up to the investigation.
Q. Okay. What about Mr. Havard? What, if
bnything, was done with him? Did you have occasion to

falk to him yourself?

him held temporarily in the holding cell which is a cell
Hownstairs in the lower portion of the jail, not in
heneral population and not in the general jail, until we
rould complete our initial investigation.

Q. Do you know whether or not any interviews were
made with him on that particular evening?

A. On that particular evening, there was a general
rerbal gtatement given by him to Deputy John Manley.

Q. Okay, sir. And to your knowledge, were any
bubsequent statements made to him?

A, Yes.

Q. And do you recall when they would have been and

311

A. Not that night. ¥No, sir. I did not. I ordered
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Direct Examination ~ Ferrell 312
what foxrm, if anything, they tock and who they were to?

A. Yes. During the course of the investigation
Freport, and by that, I mean, I was following the
investigation. I was in charge of the investigation.
[ssued instructicn to the officers of what to do. This
particular incident was reported on -- I think we
ventioned the 21st which was Thursday night. Subseqguently
br: Saturday night, the following Saturday night, I was
bontacted by Major Manley about eight p.m. that evening at
ny home that indicated to me that Mr. Havard had voiced
through a jailer or had indicated through a jailer that he
wanted to speak with Deputy Manley. Deputy Manley asked
pe for instructions at that point, should he talk to him.
[t was determined that because the contact had been made
From Mr. Havard to Deputy Manley and not from Mr. Manley
ﬁo Havard, that he was within legal recourse to interview
Mr. Havard. He did at that time. I instructed him to
gbtain a written statewment, and I then instructed him to
bbtain a videotaped statement of which he subseguently
reported to me at approximately 92:30 that Saturday night
the statement has been sécured and a video statement taken
%nd what was in that statement.

Q. Okay, sir. 2And without going in detail about
hat the stateﬁents were, 1'11 just ask you this, Sheriff.
Ias the'étatement he gave on that Saturday consistent oxr
inconsistent with the statement he had given on the night
$f February 21st of 20027
A, The statement on Saturday evening was totally

inconsistent with the initial statement on the Thursday
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evening. As a result of the statement, I ordered Deputy
Manley to formally charge Jeffrey Havard with the charge
hf capital murder at which time it was domne.

Q. Okay, sir. If you would, just tell us what, if
enything, else you can as to the investigation subsequent
o that., What, if any, other actions were taken?

A. Once the investigation started its own coﬁrse,
Fhere were many people that were found to be involved
Fhat was determined that the investigation would have:to
interview. It was determined by me from the mother of the
thild that the child had been picked up from a nursery
school prior to -- earlier in the evening of the incident
bf the 21st of February. She identified the school to me
ns the day care, United Methodist day care. I ordered
bfficers at that time to obtain statements from the
bmployees of the United Methodist day care who may have
rome into contact witﬁ the c¢hild. T later learned that
the child had been suspicicusly invelved in the incident
in a house trailer located at number 33 Montgomery Road in
Natchez in Adamg _C'ounty which is a subdivision east of
fown., While I was interviewing Rebecca Britt, I obtained
h permission to geaxrch from both she and the defendant,
Mr. Havard, for officers to search that trailer that
Fvening. During the course of which they did and obtained
evidence there that I think may be further coming in this
hage. I ordered the written statements to be obtained
From Dr. Laurie Patterson and Dr. Cadle, the attending

physicians on duty as well as the two nurses that I

nentioned, Patyricia Murray and Shelley Smith. We also

PDirect Examination - Ferrell . 313
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Direct Examination - Ferrell ' 314
brdered the statement taken from a Dr. Dar who was the
bediatrician that had been assisting or treating the child
since her birth, and during the course of the
investigation it was determined that the wother had been
in and out of the trailer and in one instance had gone to
rent some movies at the local Blockbuster. Statements
bere obtained from the employees of Blockbuster video to
letermine her activities during the time.

0. Were you able to talk with those people at the
?1ockbuster?

A, Yes. And the statements were obtained, and we
%alked with Nancy Barfoot, who is the manager of the
Blockbuster, and Scott Bandy, I believe ig his name, who
s actually the person who rented the moﬁie that night at
the Blockbuster to Rebecca, and we were able to trace that
%y a sales slip that was obtained during the search of the
trailer with a permission to search, and that's what led
us to them.

0. Did you, in fact, cobtain anything from
%lockbuster as far as any kind of video surveillancé that
they may have had that would have indicated that this
young lady was in the store that night?

A. All the indications with the receipt and other
items tended to prove she was there that night.

Q. And that was consistent with what she had told
You?

A. Yes, sgir.

Q. All right, sir. Anything else?

A I think those are the general witnesses other

PR ITEY PR
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pirect Examination -~ Ferrell _ - 315
than the exchange between me and the officers in the
direction of the inwvestigation.

Q. Okay, sir. You had indicated that you had
obtained some physical evidence from the trailer and
hospital. Was that submitted to the Mississippi Crimé
laboratory for analysis? -

A Yes, sir. At approximately 11:45 the next day,
I was in contact with the director of the state crime lab
o ask for a specific handling and a rush placed on these
tests when all the evidence wag gained. I was also back
in touch with the distrxict attorney's office the next day
Lo obtain a court oxder for samples from the suspect
Hlavard at that time. All of the evidence was gathered and
transported to the crime lab by a deputy on the following

Monday to begin an analysis in this case.

Q. QOkay, sir. And samples were taken from the
defendant?
A Yes, sir. By court order, and those were

jpubmitted to the crime lab along with all the physical

pvidence taken from the locations that vou mentioned.

BY MR. HARPER: The‘Court will indulge me just

one moment, Your Honor.

{(Mr. Harper and Mr. Rosenblatt confer.)
BY MR. HARPER:
0. Sheriff, just a couple of more questions. The
location at 33 Montgomery Road and the incidents or the
things that took place on the night of February 21st,
2002, for the record, what county and state would those

locationg be in?
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ross-Examination - Ferrell ' 316
A. They're located in Adams County, Mississippi.
Q. And the person that you have testified tonight

concerning this particulaxr case is Jeffrey Keith Havaxd.

A That's correct.

Q. You obviously did have some contact with hiwm on

~hat night and subsequently?

A, Yes, sir.

0. Would you be able to identify him for us today

Lf he's in the courtroom? |

A Yes, sir.

Q. Would you do that for me, please.

A. He is the gentleman sitting on the far right

fable located next to Mr. Robert Clark, the attorney.

BY MR. HARPER: Your Honor, we'd ask that the
record reflect.that the witness has identified the
defendant, Jeffrey Keith Havard.

BY THE CQURT: Let the recérd so reflect.

BY MR. HARPER: Thank you, Your Honor. We
tender the witness at this time.

BY THE COURT: Cross-examination.

BY MR. SERMOS: Thank you, Your Honor.

CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. SERMOS:
Q. Sheriff, I noticed while you were testifying,
you were refreshing yourself with some notes you have; is
that right?
A. Yes, sir.
BY MR. SERMOS: Your Honor, may I approach and

look at the notes pursuant to Rule 612 and see what
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notes it was he was refreshing hiwmself with.

BY THE COURT: You will be allowed to do that.

BY MR. SERMOS: Thank you, Your Honoz.
(Mr. Sermos approaches witness.)}
A, This is my case report that you have in the
file, and these are just written notes.
BY MR. SERMOS: Thank you, Your Honor.
BY MR. SERMOS:
Q. Sheriff, you stated earlier that &ou had gotten
2 consent to search from the person charged here, Jeffrey
Havard. Isn't that correct?
A Yes, sir.
0. And he voluntarily gave that to you, didn't he?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. From all the information you found when you got
o the hospital, Mr. Havard voluntarily went to the
hospital, didn't he?
A. To my knowledge. Yes, sir.
Q. And, in fact, he rode up there with the child,
Chloe Madison Britt, and Rebecca Britt; is that right?

A. Yes, sir. I don't believe I testified to that,

but that's how they got there.

Q. —Correct. Thank you, sir. You've testified now,
though. Thank you, sir. Anyway, also on your report, you
talked about many things you were doing as the shexriff to
Foordinate the investigation. Did you ever order that the
location where Jefirey Havard lived and Rebecca Britt

lived, did you ever order that place sealed off as a crime

cene?
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A. Yes, sir. I did.

Q. How long was it sealed off?

A. I can't answer the question. I don't know the
length.

Q. Maybe two or three days?

aA. Possibly that length of time. ‘I can assure you

ﬁt was at least through that Monday when the evidence was.
Fransported to the state crime lab from that Thursday.

Q. And you had mentioned in your review that you
had ordered the deputies to do many things, of course, but
brnie of the things that you ordered them was to seize all
“he covers and sheets and anything back at the mobile home
pbr the residence that had either blood or DNA or something
chat you thought might be relevant; is that correct?

A, That is correct.

Q. Okay. And as you know, one of the initial
Fharges other than capital murder when you said there was
& suspected act, was suspected sexual battery; is that
right? Or some form of assault?

A. Yes, sir.

0. Okay. Now, we know that the deputies brought in
theets and pillow cases ox wrappings, towels, and locked
4t laundry. Do you recall if any oflyour deputies ever
seized any objects that could -- somebody could assault a
person with? For example, a sexual battery, one of the
gefinitions undexr the law is assault can be with a finger
Tnd penis or an object. Do you know if any of the
deputies seized any objects that they wanted to loock at to

gee if those objects had been used?
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A. I am not aware of any objects. I reviewed
bfiefly the items seized, and the deputies would be better
suited to testify as to what they actually did see, but, .
no, sir. I'm not familiar with any.

Q. Okay. Do you recall if any of your deputies
told you that they had conducted, shall we say, I'11 use
the texrm "a search." At least a good sweeping view or
search of the outside of the mobile home. For example,

underneath the mobile home. Did vou ever hear about that?

A. No, sir.
Q. Or on the grounds or the premises around there?
A. The general grounds and premises, yes, sir,

hecause of the officers there, but, again, the officexrs
ran testify to you exactly where they went,
Q. All right. And also when Mr. Havard wanted to
speak to Major Manley, it was Mr. Havard that initiated
that conversation: isn’t that right?
A. That's correct.
BY MR. SERMOS: One moment, please, Your Honor.
BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.
(Mr. Sermos and Mr. Clark confer.)
BY MR. SERMOS: I have no‘further questions,
Your Honor.
BY THE COURT: Any redirect?
BY MR. HARPER: None, Your Honor.
BY THE CQURT: Sheriff, you wmay step down. You
will be allowed to remain in the courtroom as the
case agent. I realize you may be coming and going

some, but you will be allowed to remain in the

Cross-Examination - Ferrell 318
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courtroom.

BY SHERIFF FERRELL: Thank you.

BY THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, we're going
to take about a ten- to fifteen-minute recess at this
point before we go further up to the lunch hour. So
court will be in recess. Keep in mind what I said
previously. You're going to get tired of hearing me
say this. No contact with anybody involved in the
case, We have a numbexr of individuals here,
speétators. Many of them are families or connection
with one side or the other of this case. You're not
to have any contact with anybody. That's why yo%
have a juror button.and everybody else is admonished
not to try to contact and even speak oxr Say hello to
the jurors. 1It's a very strong rule of court
because, again, it can be totally misinterpreted. So
court will be in recess. This will be about a ten-
to fifﬁeen—minute recess.

(After a brief recess, the foilowing was made of record,
to-wit:)

BY THE COURT: Who does the State call as your
next witness?

BY MR. HARPER: I am sSoYry, Your Honor.

BY THE CQURT: Who does the State call as your
next witness?

BY MR. HARPER: We would call Ms. Amanda
Goodwin.

BY THE COURT: Amanda Goodwin.

AMANDA GOCDWIN,

L ai b A
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having been duly and legally sworn, answered
gquestions on her cath as follows, to-wit:
BY MR. HARPER: May I proceed, Your Honor?
BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.
DBIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. HARPER:
Would you state your name, please, ma'am.

A, Amanda Goodwin.

0. And, Ms. Goodwin, where do you live?

A, I live at 22 Hibiscus Lane.

Q. That's here in Natchez?

A. About seven miles north of town.

Q. and at thig time, Ms. Goodwin, where are you
- employed?

A. I am a teacher at Cathedral Elementary School.

Q. And are you -- would you -- what type of

Feacher?
A. I'm a special education teacher.
Q. What training have you had as far as your

pducational background?

A I have four years of college, bachelor's
Hegree.
Q. And that's in special education?

A Special education. Yes.

0. And how long have you worked at Cathedral?
A This is my first year. 1I've only been there
bince August.

Q. And prior to that, where do you work?

AL Teaching ox -~

o e r———
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Q. No. Your previous employment.

A. My previous employment was with Grace UMC child

development center. I was their child care director.

Q. You were their child care director?

A. Yes.

Q. How long did you serve in that capacity?
A. About a year.

Q. If I am correct, you actually were the one that

started that child care --

A. Right.

Q. -- development center there?

A, Yes.

Q. Correct me if I am wrong, Ms. Goodwin, you had

Fertain gqualifications that you had to meet to serve in
Lhat capacity; is that right?

A, Yes.

Q. Would you tell us a little bit about that,
please, ma'am.

A, In ordexr to serve as a child care director, you

tmust have either a four-year degree, which I have, in

blementary education, special education, child
Hevelopment, something along those lines. There are other
vays to qualify.

Q. That's the way that you qualified?

A. That's the way that I quaiified. Yes.

Q. Do you have to be certified before you can serve
in that position?

A. Certified?

Q. Does the State have to approve you or give you
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approval to sexve in that capacity before --

A. Well, I had to go through background checks,
fingerprints, but my degree qualified me for that.

Q. Okay. And how long -- I may have asked you
this. How long did you serve as director of child care
developmént?

A About a year.

Q. Okay. And 1'll ask you that in that capacity
did you have occasion to become acquainted by an infant
child by the name of Chlce Madison Britt?

A, Yes.

Q. Would vou tell us about that, please, ma'am.

A. Maddie was enrolled in our child care center on

old.
Q. You refer to her as Maddie. Is that what y'all
called her?

b, That's what we called her.

Q. And that is one and the same as Chloe Madison
Britt?
A, Yes, it is.

0. And you say she was enrolled. Tell us how that
-- how do y'all ;- do y'all have somebody that's enrolled
for five days a week or less than five days, or how is
that --

A. She was enrolled full time. She attended five
days a week.

Q. What hours did the children usually stay there

when --

323

October the 1st of 200i. She was approximately four weeks
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A. We opened at seven a.m. and closed at six p.m.

Q. What was her -- was she there pretty much all
the time?

A. Yes. Bhe'd usually come in around nine or ten

o'clock, and she was usually there until 5:30, 6:00.

Q. That was -- she was consistently there during
that period of time from October 17?

A. Yes. Maddie was hardly ever absent.

Q. I'1ll ask you, Ms. CGoodwin, was she, in fact,
there on February the 2ist? I think that was a Thursday
of this year?

A, Yes, She was. She was signed in at 10:30 a.m.

by her mothexr and signed out at 5:30 p.m. also by her

mother.
Q. By he£ mother?
A Yes.
Q. Did you have occasion to see her on that

particular day?
a, I did. I was not working in the infant room
that day, but I was in and out of the room, and I did see
her. One occasion that sticks in my mind, I walked into
the room to talk to one of the care givers, and I heard a
cough, and I turned to my left, and Maddie was sitting in
Lhe swing. She was wearing -- (pause)
{Witness begins crying.) ‘

Q. Take your time.

A. She was wearing purple, and I commented to the
rare giver about her cough.

BY MR. HARPER: May I approach, Your Honor?

[T
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BY THE COURT: "Yes, sir.
BY MR. HARPER:
Q. Take your time.
{Mx. Harper hands the witness tissue.)

Q. So you recall that particular incident oﬁ that
day?

A. Right. She --

Q. Go.ahead. I am sorry.

A, She -- like I said, she had a cough, but she
didn't appear to be in any pain ox injured in any way.
She was --

Q. Had you had a chance to observe her? Do you

change diapers on some of the kids down there as the

{director?

A. Oh, vyes.

Q. Had vou done that with her on occasion?
A. Yes. Several times.
Q. Did you ever notice anything, any injuries or

anything wrong with her?
BY MR. SERMOS: Objection, Your Honor. He's
leading the witness.
BY THE COURT: Let's don't lead the witness, Mr.
Harper.
BY MR. HARPER: I apologize, Your Honor.
BY THE COURT: Let's go ahead and proceed.
BY MR. HARPER:
Q. What, if anything, did you ever observe about
her appearance prior to February 21 of 20022

A. Maddie was a very clean, well nourished child,

[ P
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She never had any bruises or marks on her of any:kind.‘ My
staff was reguired to do a health check on the children
every worning, and they were to document any bruises, any
marks, and report immediately to me anything suspicious at
all.

Q. Did you ever have any reports of --

A. Nothing.

Q. -- involving hex?
A. Never.
Q. Now, when you say they wexre required to, is that

by law or is that just a regquirement that y'all had? what
was --

A. They were required to document it. I required
them to report it to me.

Q. And no reports had ever been made prior to
that -- was a report wade on that date, February 2ilst,

about any --

A. No.
Q. -- injuries to hexr?
A. No. Newver on Maddie.

Q. And you indicated that you do recall observing
her that one time and possibly other times. Did you

obgexrve anything about her physical appearance that day

{that would indicate to you what, if anything, had been

done to her prior to that?

A. Nothing.

Q. Okay. . And I will ask fou- Did you change her
diapers to your recollection on February the 21st?

A. I did not on February the 21st.
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Q. Did members of your staff do that during the

course of that day?

A. Oh, ves. I'm sure they changed several times
that day.

Q. I believe she was about six months old; is that
right?

A. Yes.

Q. It would be pretty common practice with a sgix
month old --

BY MR. SERMOS: Objection, Your Honox. Leading
the witness. |
BY MR.IHARPER: I apologize, Your Honor. I'm
just trying --
BY THE COURT: That will be sustained. Rephrase
your question, Mr. Harper.
BY MR. HARPER:

Q. Would it have been a requirement that your staff
would change her diapers several times during the coﬁrse
of a day when she was there?

‘ A. Yes. And they were to document each time that
she was‘changed, and they were to tell on the
documentation for the parent if she was wet or had a bowel
movement.

Q. Okay.

A. We had --

Q. I'm sorry.

A, We had forms. Just Xerox forms, and the care
givers would circle the time and write out beside it a "W"

for wet or "B" for bowel movement. So she was changed
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many times that day.

Q. = Did they, in fact, do that on February 21st of
20027

Al Yes.

0. What, if anything, on that report on that date
was remarkable, if anything? .

A. Nothing that I know of. That report was then
given to her mother when she was picked up.

Q. Okay. But nobody made any reports to you?

A. No, they did mot.

Q. And I believe you said she was picked up that
day at approximately what time?

A Five-thirty by her mother.

Q. Okay.

BY MR. HARPER: The Court will indulge me just
one moment, Your Honor.
BY THE COURT: Yes.
(Mr. Harper and Mr. Rosenblatt confer.)
BY MR. HARPER: Please the Court, Your Honor.

May I approach the witness?

BY THE COURT: Certainly.
BY MR. HARPER:

Q. Ms. Goodwin, I am going to hand you an exhibit
that's been marked as State's Exhibit 2, and ask if you'll
look at that and tell me whether or not you can identify
who's in the picture?

A. That's Maddie.

BY MR. HARPER: That's all I have, Youxr Honox.

BY THE COURT: All right. Any

[
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cross-examination?
CROSS~-EXAMINATION
BY MR. SERMOS:.

Q. Do you recall talking to Deputy Darion Smith?

A. I do.

Q. And that would have been back on the 22nd of
February of this year?

A. Correct.

Q. Okay. And do you remember telling him that you
had -- that no bruises or signs of abuse were ever
cbserved on Maddie?

A. Yes. That's correct.

0. Chloe as we call her. Okay. And you also toid

him that Rebecca Britt -- that's the mother, right?
A. Corxrect.
Q. That Rebecca Britt's mother, Lillian Watson,

paid the billgs at the day care; is that correct?

A. That is correct.

Q. And are you a licensed social worker?

A. No.

Q. But you were at a state licensed day care

|center, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. That means you all are mandated reporters for
any allegations of child abuse or any signs of chilq
abuse; is that correct?

A. That is correct.

Q. So you were or your staff would have a duty to

report regardless of your own internal rules; isn't that

[ TP
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right?

A Definitely. Yes.

Q. And that would be according to the Mississippi
Code, right?

A. Right.

Q. From what you observed of Maddie, she was always
clean, wasn't she?

A Yes.

Well nourished?

A. Yes.
Q. You had never seen any signs of abuse on her?
A. No.

BY MR. SERMOS: No further questions, Your
Honor.

BY THE COURT: Any redirect?

BY MR. HARPER: We have no further questions of
this witness, Your Honor. We'd ask that she be
excused at this time, I think, from our subpoena. I
don't know whether the defense may have her under
subpoena, too.

BY THE COURT: Is there any reason to keep this
witness under subpoena?

BY MR. SERMOS: No, Your Honor. We would excuse
her also.

BY THE COURT: You may step down, and you will
be excused and released from your subpcena.

BY THE WITNESS: Thank you.

(Witness steps down.)

BY THE COURT: Who does the State call as your

brs W4 e
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next witness?
BY MR. HARPER: Ms. Katie Thompson, Your Honor,
BY THE COURT: Katie Thompson.
KATIE THOMPSON,
having been duly and legally sworn, answered
questions on her oath as follows, to-wit:

BY THE COURT: You may have a seat.

BY MR. HARPER: May I proceed, Your Honor?

BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. HARPER:
Would you state your name, please, ma " am.
Katie Thompson.
And, Ms. Thompson, where do you live?
108 Otis Redding Drive.

That's here in Natchez?

Natchez. Yesg, sir.

Are you employed?

Yes, I am.

Where do you work; Ms. Thompson?

Grace United Methodisf Church.

O B oo PO PO PO ¥ DO

In what capacity do you work there? What's your
job?
Caregiver.

At the day care?

L

Yes, sir.
Q. And how long have you worked there, Ms.
Thompson?

A. About seventeen momnths.
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0. You were obviously working there back in
February of this year, 2002; were you not?
A, Yes.
Q. Have you had pretty much the same position? I -
know you're a care giver. Do you have a pﬁrticular
assignment there?

A. Well, mostly with the infantg.

Q. With the infants?
A Working with the infants.
Q. Is that what you've been doing pretty much since

you started?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. and back in February and prior to that, 4did you
have occasion to be involved in the caregiving for the
¢hild, Chloe Madison Britt?

A. Yes.

Q. And I believe y'all called her Maddie --

A Maddie. Yes. |

Q. -- is that right? Okay. How long had she been
coming there to your reéollection prior to February?

A, I think she started when she was four months.

Q. Okay. BAnd I'll ask you, Qhat, if any,
involvement you had with her on a daily basis as she was
coming there?

A. Yes. Every day.

Q. You éaw her every day?

A Every day, yes.

Q. What, if any, duties did you have as far as

your care giving for Maddie and the other children in hex

PRSI RE F
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group?

A. Well, we would feed them and change their
diapers and, you know, take care of them.

Q. How old was Maddie in February? If you know.

A I think about five and a half months. I think.
Something like that.

Q. And ¥'1]l ask you this. How often at all do you
change the diaper of a five and a half-month-old childz?

A Well, we change them five to seven times a day,
you know.

Q. Every day.

A, Yes. Every day.

Q. On February the 21st, do you recall whether or
not you changed Maddie's diaper on that particular day?

A. Yes, 1 did.

Q. Do you remember how many times you changed her
diaper on that day?

A. Well, I am sure it was over five becausgse we do
over five every day.

Q. Do you recall the last time you changed her
diapér on that particular day?

A. It was around five, a little after.

Q. Right before she went home?

A Yes.

Q. and I will ask you, Ms. Thompscon, at any time
during the day that you changed her diaper and esgpecially
on that last time, did you ever observe anything about her
physical condition that you'd consider to be unusuél?

A. No.

e e b ——— ek
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Q. Nothiﬁg wrong with hex?

A. Well, she had a diaper rash, you know, but
that's about all, you know.

Q. 1’11 ask you, in changing her diaper, I assume
you had a chance to look at her bottom, her anus?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Did you observe anything unusual about
her anus on that day, Februaxry the 21st of 2002, prior to
her leaving?

A. Nq, 1 didn*t.

Q. And the last time that you changed her diaper a
little after five, did you cbserve anything unusual about
her anus?

A. No, nothing but the diaper rash. That's it.

BY MR. HARPER: May I approach, Your Honor.
BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.
BY MR. HARPER:

Q. Ms. Thompson, I awm going to show you a
photograph and ask if you can identify who this child is
in this photograph?

A, Yes. That's Maddie.

Q. Okay. Thank you, ma'am.

BY MR. HARPER: That's all I have, Your Honor.
BY THE COURT: Cross-examination.
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. CLARK: -

Q. Ms. Thompson, did you also observe other things

about Maddie on that particular day of February 21st

concerning the nese running?

et e bk it
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A. Well, yes. She had a deep cough and rather --
0. Her nose was running also?
A. Well, yes. A little.
Q. Okay -
A. Just a little.
Q. Was she a sickly child? Was she sick often?
A, No .
Q. Did her mother bring her medicine there when she
was sick?

A. We cannot give her medicine but -~-

You can't give her medicine.

No.

Even under a doctor's instruction?

No.

Okay.

That's the health department's rule.
She did have a diaper rash?
Yes.

Which means, hexr bottom area was red or --

> O p O PO PO oD

Red. Yes.
BY MR. CLARK: Thank you. That's all we have, .
Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: Any redirect:?

BY MR. HARPER: None, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: All right. You may step down.
Would this witness be released from her subpoena?

BY MR. HARPER: Yes, Your Honor. We'd ask that
she'd be released. Again, I think the defense has

her under subpoena, I doh‘t know.

[ N Y
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BY MR. SERMOS: HWe release her also, Your Honor.

BY fHE COURT: 7You'll be released from your
subpoena. You may do.

(witness steps down.}

BY THE COURT: Who does the State call as your
next witness?

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Rebecca Britt.

BY THE COURT: Rebecca Britt.

REBECCA BRITT,
having been duly and legally sworn, answered
~questions on her cath as follows, to-wit:

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: May I proceed, Your Honor?

BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.

BY MR. CLARK: Could we approcach the bench?

BY THE COQURT: Sure,.

{After a bench conference about the placement of the easel
in relation to the witness, the following was made of
record, to-wit:)

BY THE COURT: Let the record show that in the
event that the State shows any of the photographs or
the evidence, that the counsel for the defendant and
the defendant will be allowed to move to an area of
the courtroom so that they may be able to see that
also.

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: You may proceed, Mr. Rosenblatt.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. ROSENBLATT:

Q. You're Rebecca Britt?

s A e B
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. How old are you, Rebecca?

Al Twenty-three.

Q. Where is youxr home?

A. I live in Baton Rouge right now.

Q. Where did you grow up?

A, In Ferriday.

Q. Went to school in Ferriday?

A. At Huntington. Yes, sir. At Huntington.

0. What year did you graduate?

A 197,

Q. What did you do after you graduated, Rebecca?

A I went into the air force about six months
later.

Q. What was your intention on jeoining the air

force? What did you want to do?

A. Security forces, law enforcement.
Q. What happened to your air force career?
A. Three weeks in the bagic training, I had broken

my foot, and in tech school I found out about it and they
gent me home.

0. Your discharge was fully honorable in every way;
was it not?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Rebecca, we're here talking about Chloe Madison
Britt. Who is Chloe Madison Britt?

A, She was my daughter.

0. And when was she born?

A. Rugust 29th, 2000.

s
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ytall --
Al

You know,

Direct Examination - Britt

And how old was she when she died?
She was six months.

Now, the three weeks before that date, February

21st, 2002, where were you living?

33 Montgomery Road.

And where is that?

In -- it's near Cloverdale.

Ms. Britt, I am going to hold up what's been
Exhibit Number 1. This is a city map of

Would you point out where Montgomery Road, where

Cloverdale is.

{Witness points.)

You're pointing to the green dot at the bottom

of the map?

Yes, sir.

Who were you living with?

Jeffrey Havard.

How long had you known Jeffrey Havard?
About two months.

Was Jeffrey the father of youxr child?
No, he wasn't.

Did you even know Jeffrey when Chlce was born?
No, sir.

How did you meet Jeffrey?

We met through a mutual friend.

Like at a party or date oxr what? How did

No. We just -- he just kind of hooked us up.

he knew we were both looking for a relationship.
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Q. How 1ong were you -- how long have you known
Jeffrey before you moved in with him?
A. About a wmonth and a halﬁ.

Q. And you moved in with him down on Montgomery?

A. Yes, sir.
Q. Rebecca, I am geing to show you what's been

marked as Exhibit Number 3 and ask if you can identify

that for me.

A, That's the trailer that we were living in,
Q. And whose trailer was that?

A. Jeff's grandfather's.

Q. Where did his grandfather live?

A, Kind of caddycornered acrogs the street.
Q. Right close by?

A. Yes, sir.

How long had anyone been in that mobile home
living there? Do you know?

A I am not sure. -

Q. Bad they fixed it up just for Jeffrey?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. What occasion -- I mean, how did you come to
live down there at that mobile home?

A. At the current time, I was living with a frieng
of mine, and it turned into a bad situation. So I got out
and moved in with Jeff.

Q. Had you ever lived with your mothex?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What period of time prior teo all this had you

been with your mother?

[ e Ll
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A, I moved in with her from the four month of my

pregnancy until October aftex she was born.

Q. So you and your mother had a close relationship
during this delivery time?

A, Definitely. Yes, sir.

Q. And who is your mother?

Lillian Watson.

Where does she work?

She works at Natchez Community Hospital.

Doing what?

She's an RN in ICU.

In ICU?

A S S L

Yes, sir.

Q. Does your mother close -- was your mother close
Fo Chloe as you call her?

A. Ch, yeah. Yes, sir.

Q. Wha; were some evidences of that?

A. She loved her. She kept her for me sometimes,
%nd she was always getting her and my niece together. My
Trother’s daughter.

Q. Did your mother help with the day care at all?
Yes, sir.

In what way?

She paid for it.

That was your mother's doing?

. Yes, sir.

©p o P o P

And where was Chloe in day care?
A. She was in the nursery.

Q. At where?

e e Pt
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A. At Grace United Methedist,

Q. Hheﬁ you moved in with Jeffrey on Montgomery

Road, were either of y'all working?

A. He was working before we moved in, and he had

quit his'job about a week before.

0. Were you working?
A, No, sir.
Q. So neither one of y'all was woxking when you

moved in down there?

A. No, sir.

Q. Rebecca, I am going to ask you to step down
here, if I may, and look at thig chart with me if you
Fould.

. BY MR. ROSENBLATT: And, Your Honeor, would the
record reflect that I've flipped over Exhibit Number
1 to show a floor plan. And if you'd step to the
side so the jury can see,

BY MR. ROSENBLATT:

Q. Would you identify this floor plan for me,
Pplease.

A. This is the trailer.

Q. You have to speak up so they can hear you in
the back.

A This is the trailer that we were living in.

This is our bed, and right here was Maddie's crib. The
hHathroom and the living room, the kitchen, the washer and
dryer, and another bathroom and bedroom over there,

Q. What were y'all deing with this end of the

tirailer?
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Nothing. It was just empty, storage.

So the three of y'all lived basically at this

end of the trailer?

Yes, sir.

And when you say master bedroom, who stayed in

Me and Jeffrey.
And y'all shared the same bed?
Yes, sir.

And bedroom number two it showe on the chart,

Whose room is that?

That was Maddie's room.

What élse was in there with her?

Her crib and dresser and clothes and toys.
Who had furnished all those things?

My mother.

Jeffrey didn't furnish?

No.

What had you brought to the trailer with you

hen you moved in?

My things. My clothes, Maddie's crib, and

dresser and clothes and toys.

The bed linens, for exawmple, whose were they?
Those were my sheets.

Your bed linens?

Yes, sir.

aAnd the bathroom at the end of the mobile home

o+ the right, who used that bathroom?

Me and Jeffrey and Maddie.

342
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Q. I'm sorry. Would you repeat what you said.

BY THE COURT: Be sure to speak up so the court
reporter can take this down.
A. Me and Maddie would take.baths, and Jeff would
use ‘the bath also. i |
Q. I'll let you return to the witness stand now.

(Witness returns to the witness stand.)

Q. What was the relationship between Jeffrey and
your baby?
Al It was -- it was, I guess, your typical

felationship. He didn’'t spend much time with her. I
nean, other than her being at the house after day care, he
didn't really go out of his way to do things with hexr or
fhings like that but --
Q. To youxr knowledge, did he ever bath the baby?
A. He never did except for the night in question.
*e said he had given her a bath.
Q. He never bathed her before that, did he?
A. No, sir.
Q. Did he ever change the baby?
A; Neo, sir.
Q. Did he ever have any extensive interaction,
playing with her, that sort of thing, for that length of
tiime?
A. No, sir.

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Now, the record would
reflect I'm flipping my Exhibit 1 back over to show
the map of Natchez.

BY MR. ROSENBLATT:

Direct Examination - Britt 343
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Q. Ms. Rebecca, if you'd come down here and let me

of the date of the 21st. You have to speak up so Mrs.

the 21st, what time, if you reéecall, did you pick Chloe up
from day care?

A, I picked her up at 5:30.

Was that typical for you?

Yes, sir.

And what did you do after that?

7ft—“.'C):'fﬂ’lO

I went back home.

0. And home, would you point it out.

(Witness points.)

Q. Is the green dot down in Cloverdale.

A, Yes, sir.

Q. And what happened at home?

A. We just stayed there for a while and played.with

her like I usually do after day care. I fed her about

-4:30, 7:00.
Q. Do you remember what you fed her?
A. Bananas. She loved bananas.
Q. Okay. Did she take anything else?
A. A bottle.

- Q. I am sorry?

A. A bottle.
Q. Okay. What about any medications?
A, She had medicine that I put in her bottle.
Q. And what was that --
A For ear infection and a cough.

show you the map again and let you trace for us the events

Melanie can hear you and all the jurors can hear vyou. On

irect Examination - Britt 344 ]
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Q. Was that a prescription medicine?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Who had prescribed that for her?

A. Dr. Dar.

Q. And by Dr. Dar, who are you referring to?
A. That was her pediatrician.

Q. Do you know her whole name?

A. Ayesha Dar.

Q. Where does she work?

. She worked at the Family Medical Center.
‘Q. Where is that?

Aa. Right across from Natchez Community.

Q. Was that Chloe's regular pediatrician?
A. Yesg, sir.

Q. Okay. So you fed Chloe, gave her a bottle and
ner medicine, and then what?

A. About 7:30 or almest 8:00, Jeff had asked me to
o to the grocery store, and I drove from the house to --

own Lower Woodville to the red light and went to the

L

rocery store.

Q. What's the name of the grocery store if you
tecall?

A. Natchez Market.

Q. Okay. Jeff gave you the money.

A. Yes, sir.

Qi Now, was that typical? I mean, did he pay for
thhe gfoceries, or did you contribute anything to the
gFoceries?

A. We usually both contributed.

345
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Q. On this occasion, he gave you how much?
A. Twenty dollars, I believe.

Q. Okay. And sent you to the grocery.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did he make any specific requests of you?
A, Not for the grocery store. No.

Q. Wwhat did he say?

A. He just said go get some supper.

Q. Okay. And you did?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you remember what you got?

A, I believe I got some drinks and some things to

hake burritos with.

Q. Ckay .

A, And after that I went home.

Q. S5ame route?

A. Yes, sir.-

Q. Okay. And what did you find when you got home?
A; I checkéd on Méddie, and she was sleeping. And
eff had taken the sheets off the bed and told me he was

ashing them and that he had given her a bath and put her

little noise in her throat.
Q. Did it kind of surprise you that Jeffrey --
BY MR. SERMOS: Objection, Your Honor. Leading
guestion.
BY THE COURT: I'il sustain as to that
gquestion.

Yy MR. ROSENBLATT:

346
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Q. What was your reaction to Jeff giving the baby a
bath?

AL At first, you know, I thought it was nice, you
know. Trying -- you know -- he was trying to help me out,

and then it was surprising because he hadn‘t done anything

like that before but -~- (pause)
Q.. Now, tell me again about checking on Chlcoe.
A. When I went in and checked on her, she made a

little noise in her throat.

Q. Did you turn the -- I am sorry. What was the
lighting condition like in the room when vou went and
checked on hér?_

A, The light was off. I had a lamp in the corner
that was dim, and I didn't turn the lights on when I went
in there. I checked on her. After she made the noise, I
picked her up and made sure that there wasn't nothing in
her throat, and she seemed fine. She opened her eyes a
little bit and kind of went back to sleep, and then I put
her back into her bed, and I walked out and sat down and
feff insisted on me going to the video store.

Q. You had just gotten back from the grocery; is

rhat correct?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. And what does he tell you to do?

A. Go to the video store. -

Q. And do what?

A. Pick up some videos.

Q. Is that the only means of entertainment y'all

+ad?

Direct Examination - Britt 347
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Direct Examination - Britt C 348
A. No, sir. We had just bought a satellite a few
days before.

Q. Can you get movies on your satellite?

Pay per view. Yes, sir.

But he wanted you to do what?

Go to the wvideo store.

And so what did you do?

L S

I went to the video store.

Q. Now, trace your route for us from the home in
Cloverdale up to the video store.

A. I went from the houée down Highland and went to
Fhe video down Sergeant Prentiss.

Q. And do you remember how long you stayed there?
A. Not long at all. Maybe ten or fifteen minutes
it the video store. l

Q. Do you remember what you got? I mean, like how
hany? One movie, three movies.

A. Three, I think. Three oxr four.

Q. Okay. And then what did yoﬁ do?

A. I went back home.

Q And what happened when you got home?

A I got home and Jeff was in the bathxoom,

Q. Let me just stop you. You can have a seat.
{Witness returns to witness stand.)

HY MR. ROSENBLATT:

Rebecca, when you got back home --

I got back home.

. What happened?

> o p oo

and Jeff was in the bathroom, and I went to

RN P
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check on Maddie.

When you say he was in the bathroom, was the

door open or closged?

It was closed.
So he didn't see you when you got home.

No, sir. When I walked in, I called for him and

he said that he was in the bathroom.

Okay. So what did you do then?

i went and checked on Maddie.

What did you £fing?

She was blue. She wasn't breathing.

I am sorry. I didn't hear you. She was what?
She was blue and not breathing.

Okay.

and I picked her up and called for Jeff. I took

her to the living room and did CPR. T tried to

Fesuscitate her.

Did you know what had happened to Chloe?

No, sir.

Did Jeff tell you what had happened to Chloe?
No, sir.

Did you ask him what happened to Chloe?

I didn't ask about what had happened. T was

just trying to get her to breath.

Okay .
2and I couldn't. I couldn't resuscitate her.

You couldn't get her to breath. 8o what did you

At first I told him to go to his grandparents
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and call for the ambulance, and he talked -- he said let's
go to the.hospital. And so I picked her up and tock her
outside and was going td get in the car, but he was still
inside putting on clothes and trying to get shoes and
trying to put on his thrt. And he finally came outside,

and we got the car, and we started driving to the

hospital.
Q. Ckay.
A, And --
Q. And you mentioned when you went out, you would

go down Highland Road --

A, Right.
Q. Is that how Jeffrey went?
A. When we got to the stop sign to turn right at

Highland, he kept going straight.

Q. Toward Lower Woodville Road?

A Right. I -asked him what he was doing bhecause
there were no hospitals that way, and he turned around and
étarﬁed going towards the hospitals.

Q. Which hospital did you want to go to?

AL I wanted to go to Community.
Q. Of course, the hospitals are how far apart
anyway?

A. They're not very far apart.

Why did you want to go to Community?
Because that's where my mother worked.
Do they have an emergency room therxe?

Yes, sir.

¥ o PO

Are you acquainted with some of the personnel
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-there?

A, All of them.

Q. What happenéd when you got to Community

Hospital?

A. When I got there, I walked in'and I told the

first perxson that I saw that my baby wasn't breathing, and
she tdok her from me and took her to the back.

Do you know who that person was?

A, Shelley Smith.

Q. She works thereé

A. Yes, sir.

Q, Did vou ever see Chloe again, Rebecca?

A, No, sir.

Q. I am sorry?

A; No, sir.

Q. You never saw her again?

A Not until the funeral.

Q. Did anyone ever come cut and talk to you?
A. Yeg, sir.

Q. Who came out and talked to you?

A. Dr. Dar came out for a minute. Pat Murphy had

~ome out to let me call my‘mother.

Q. Who is Pat Murphy?

A, As far as I know, she was the director of the

PR at the time.

Q. Did Shelley Smith ever come back out and ask you-
What had happened to the baby?

A. She came out and asked me who had been with her

before we brought her to the hospital.

[ P
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Q. Were you able to provide any information about
what sort of treatment Chloe needed? Were you able to
give them any help?

A, I told her that -- I mean, the only thing I

that was all I could think of.

Q. You thought maybe it was something natural?

A. Uh-hum.

Q. At what point did you realize it wasn't
something natural?

A. I had an idea when I was trying to resuscitate
her. I stuck my finger in her throat to see if there was
anything in there, and her throat was closed up. 1
¢ouldn't even get my finger in there. And then the
heriff officers showed up at the hospital, and that's
Ihen I knew.

Q. Knew what?

A, That Jeff had done something.

Q. How do you know someone else hadn't done
40mething?
A. He was the only one at the house.

Q. Did Jeff ever tell you something had happened to
Chloe?

A. He had just told wme that she had spit up a
llittle bit on the sheets, and that's why he was washing
them and that was it.

Q. He never told you he had whopped the baby's head
or anythiﬁg like that? .o

A, No, sir.

irect Bxamination - Britt 352
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Q. He never told you about any injury that éhlce

had gotten?

A. No, sir.
Q. Did you have occasion to talk with the deputiesg?
A. I didn't talk with the deputies. No, sir.

Until after I left the hospital.

All right. How did you leave the hospital?

. The deputy took me to the sheriff's department.
What did you do at the sheriff's department?

I answered questions and filled out statements.

°© ¥ o » oo

How many times did you do that? Do you recall?
A A few. Two or three times that night, and I
couldn't finish. I had to come back the next day.

Q. Did you ever tell them anything other than what
you've told these ladies and gentlemen here today?

A. No, sir.

Q. And is that what happened that evening? -

A. Yes, sir.

Q. When you got back from Blockbuster, where was
Jeffrey?

- A, In the bathroom.

Q.  With the door closed.

A, Yes, sir.

0. And where was Chloe?

A. In her bed.

Q. And what was Chloe doing?

A, Nothing.

Q.. This six-month-old child that we've been talking

apout that lived with you and Jeff at that mobile home,

avmmr Al i
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I'm going to show you this picture and ask you to identify
it?

A. That's my daughter.

Your daughter who?

Maddie.

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Your Honor, I'd ask
permission to publish this exhibit to the jury at
thig time?

BY THE COURT: The Court will allow you to
publish Exhibit 2 to the jury.

{(Mr. Rosenblatt passes Exhibit 2 to the jury.)

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: I tender the witnesgs, Your
Honor.

BY THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, let me tell
yvou this. Whenever matters are published or given
to you to look at, whether it be photographs or other
things, we'll go ahead and proceed, but you just take
your time and look at it and pasg it down, and when
you get through with it, you can iust set it up on
the edge there, but don't let it interfere with you
hearing what the witness has to say. - $So just take
your time. Mr. Sermos, you may prdceed.

BY MR. SERMOS: Thank you, Your Honor.

CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. SERMOS:
Q. You stated that a lot of those furnishings you
thlked about that were in that mobile home that they
belonged to you personally; is that right?

A. and Maddie's room.

P
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Cross-Examination - Britt ' ' 355
Q. Right. In Maddie's room. Do you know who
actually owned that mobile home?

A. Jeff's grandfather.

Q And that would be Mr. William Havard?
A. Yes, sir.
Q So he -- basically you and Jeff were staying

there rent free; is that right?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And were all the bills paid in that mobile home
like the electric and power bill? Was that paid by Mr.
Havard, Wiiliam Havard?

A I am not real sure.

Q. When you got back that afternoon at about

5:30 when you picked the baby up, what did you do for that

two hours before you went to the grocery store?

A, I played with Maddie and sat there with her and
fed her.

Q. Okay. Did you go out for any ride in the car or
enything?

A. No, sir.

Q. And while you were there, was Jeff asleep or was

‘he up also?

A. He wag up.

Q. And then you stated -- you were describing what
ve know when you got back from the video store that you
found the baby wasn't breathing and her throat was very
tight, you attempted to or gave her CPR inside the mobile
ome; is that right?

A. Yes, gir.

o ——— T R
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Yoss-Examination - Britt : ’ 356

Q. Was that on the living room floor that you did

that?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Would you please describe basically as you can

what kind of -- how did you try to deliver CPR to her?
A. CPR. I gave five breaths and four pushes and
checked her throat.

Q. So you had her laying on the floor?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Oon her back?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. ond then so you. tried to breath into her mouth
five times and tried to push on her chest; is that right?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that didn't work?

A. No, sir.

Q. And then shortly after that, you all got into

the car to drive to the hospital, right?

A. Yes, sgir,

Q. and who was driving.the car?

A.. - Jeff was.

Q. And you were sitting in the right passenger's

deat; is that right?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you were holding the baby?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you try to do any CPR while you were in the

dar on the way to the hospital?

A. I tried but it was hard to do.

\ e e b
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Cross-Examination - Britt . 357

Q. Okay. And that would have been breathing again

1into the mouth --

A. Right.
Q. And mashing on the baby's chest. Do you
remember talking to a Deputy Ray Brown. I mean, you
probably talked to several deputies that night, but do you
remewmber talking to him in particular? Excuse me.
BY MR. SERMOS: May I approach the witness, Your
Honox?
BY THE COURT: Certainly. Certainly.
{(Mr. Sermos hands the witness a document.)
BY MR.. SERMOS:
Q First, is that your signature at the bottom?
A Yes, sir.
Q. Did you write that statement?
A Yes, sir.
Q Ckay .
BY MR. SERMOS: One moment, please, Your Honor.
BY THE CQURT: Yes, sir.
(Mr. Sermcs and Mr. Clark and the defendant -.confer.}
BY MR. SERMOS:
Q. When you went to the sheriff's office, do you

remembering talking to the Sheriff Ferrell?

A Yes, sir.

Q. How did he treat you?

A. He treated me like he might have thought that --
you know -~ he wanted to make sure I didn’'t have anything

fo do with it.

Q. In other words, was he very formal with you?

S ]m bbb
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A. He was very straight forward.

Q. Okay. And do you remember talking to the
digtrict attorney, Mr. Romnnie Harper?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that was also at the sheriff's office,

A. Yes, sir.
Q. Had you -- when was the last time that you had
been working? _
A. I worked last in Baton Rouge right before I
#ound 6ut that I was pregnané.
Q. And so ig it fair to say that when you met Jeff
and then you moved in there into the mobile home with him,
you really needed a place to live; is that right?
A, Yes, sir.
Q. And while you were there for that three weeks,
you were basically there three weeks before this incident
happened; is that right?
Al Yes, sir.
0. Is it fair to say that vou always felt safe and
Lecure there?
A. Yes, sir.’

BY MR. SERMOS: Nothing. further, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: Any redirect?

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Your Honor, we have nothing
further of Ms. Britt.

BY THE COURT: You may step down. I assume
she'll remain under the subpoena?

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: I would assume so.

Cross-Examination - Britt : 358
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Direct Examination - Smith 359

BY MR. SERMOS: Yes, Your Honor. We would ask
that she be held on standby status, if you will.

BY THE COURT: You will still be under subpoena
.but you may leave the courtroom,
(Witness gsteps down.)

BY THE COURT: Who does the State call as your
next witness?

BY MR. HARPER: Call Ms. Shelley Smith, Your
Honor. '

BY THE COURT: Shelley Smith.

SHELLEY SMITH,
having been duly and legally sworn, answered
questions on hexr oath as follows, to-wit:

BY THE COURT: Excuse me. Mr. Harper. You may
proceed.

BY MR. HARPER: May I proceed?

BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

]LY MR. HARPER:

Would you state your name, please, ma'am.
Shelley Ann Smith. |

And, Ms. Smith, where do you live?

Tara Apartments.

That's here in Naﬁchez?

Yes, sir.

And where are you employed, Ms. Smith?

Natchez Community Hospital.

© p o P O PO PO

And in what capacity are you employed there?

A. I am a phlebotomist in the laboratory.

R VT
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Q.

A.

Q.

A.
0.
A.

Q.

A,

Q.

A.

0.

A,
-Q-

A.

Q.

A.

- well,

Hebecca.

How long have you worked at Community Hospital?

Direct Examination - Smith

A little over a year.

360

And I'd like to direct your attention, Ms. Smith

let me ask you this before that. What

Well, I'm a naticnally certified phlebotomist,

And I'll ask you if you were working in that

Yes,
And were you, in fact, working on that evening?
Yes,

Would you tell us whether or not you had

Yes,

Why don't you just tell us, if you would, how

Eraining and education do you have that qualifies you to

pe a phlebotomist?
-hnd I have an associate's in pre-nursing.

tapacity at Community Hospital in February, specifically

bn February the 2lst of this year, 2002?

sir.

sir.

%ccasion to be involved in the treatment of the minor

¢hild, Chloe Madison Britt, on that particular evening?

sir.

you came to be involved in that treatment.

Another lab tech and I were going to the

Let
Who
The
Did

No,

gmergency room to return a lab report when Rebecca came
tuming into the emergency room with her child and stated

o me that her child was not breathing.

me stop you just a second. You said
are you referring to?

child's mothexr, Rebecca Britt.

you know her prior to that?

sir.

g e an
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Direct Examination - Smith 361
Q. You subsequently learned wheo it was?

A Yes, sir.

Q. So the lady came in with the baby?

A Yes, sir.

Q. aAfter she told you that, what did you say?

A She gave me the baby, and I said okay. I
looked at her real quick and noticed that she wasn't
breathing. That she was blue. Had a small bruise on her
iip. I turned to the other worker I was working with and
rold her to open the ER doors because there’s a code to
Jet into the BER and gave a quick rescue breath, ran into
Fhe emergency room, informed our staff that we had a code
00, and Dr, Patterson and I and an EMT went into the
crauma room. I gave a guick breath. The EMT said, "I
Hon't think if's getting in." Air properly getting in.

Bo Dr. Patterson took over and told me to go find out the
rhild's name, how old the child was. So I left and went
%.nd talked with Ms. Britt and the defendant.

Q. ~ And when the lady came in with the baby, did
$nyone come in with her.at that time?

A. No, sir.

Q. When you went back out to talk with her, who, if
Wnyone, was ﬁith hex?

A. The defendant was sitting iﬁ the triage room.
Q. Did you know him prior to that date?

A No. .

Q. Did you see the person that was with her present
in the courtroom today?

A, Yes, sir.
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. DPirect Examination - Smith 362

Q. Would you peoint him out and describe what he's
vearing for me, please, ma ! am.
A. He's got on ~- looks like a navy suit.

BY MR. HARPER: Your Honor, we would ask that
the record reflect that the witness has identified
the defendant, Jeffrey Havard.

BY THE COURT: Let the record so reflect.

BY MR. HARPER:

Q. All right. So you went back ocut to talk to Ms.
Britt and saw the two of them?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Tell us what hapﬁened when you got out there.

A I asked her -- I asked both of them actually

ow old the child was and what was her name, and they told
e that her name was Chloe and that she was around six

onths old, and this was really hectic because I was

1.

unning back and forth between the emergency room
grocedures and talk with them. I got that information.

fent back out, ran back to the emergency room to the

et

Hrauma room, told the doctors the baby's name and how old

he was, and they then instructed me to go back and ask --

S In

ind out what happened, what could have caused this, was

he taking anything. So I went back to the triage xoom

1]

where Ms. Britt and the defendant were and asked them, and

ecky said she had went to the store and came back to

I

gheck on Chloe, and she wasn't breathing, and she came

I

traight to the emergency room. And the defendant then
daid that -- well, while Becky was gone they had given her

- he had given her medicine and while she was gone'that
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she had spit up and that he had changed her and put her to
Ded . |

Q. Okay. Did he wake -~ what, if anything, d4id he
3ay- to you about any injuries the child may have received
wvhile she was gone to the store?

A He did not say. The only thing he said was he
bave her her ear medicine in a smushed up banana, and that
Bhe had spit up. So he cleaned her up and changed her and
but” her to bed.

Q. What, if anything else, did either one of them

bay at that point in time?

A, He asked for a cigarette.

Q. He asked you for a cigarette?

A. Uh-hum.

Q. In the hospital?

a. Yes, sir.

Q. and what, if anything, did you do at that point?

A. I gave him a cigarette, and then I went back
dnd told the emergency room physician that she had been
taking some medicine for an ear infection. They gave it
Lo her in a banana, and that's all at that point. That's
#1l1 we knew at that point.

Q. What, if anything, did you do at that point?
A. I stood by until they were ready to draw blocd,
#nd I drew the chemistry panel and CBC and took it --

Q. What did you do after you drew those?

A, I took it back to the lab and waited for the
results and took them back. I had to get all the

information for our computer system. So I was back and

Direct Examination - Smith 363
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Pirect Examination - Smith 364
forth between the emergency room desk and the lab getting
information for our computers.

Q. You were in and out of-the room, but you
yeren't in_there extended periods of time to observe
Lreatment or anything like that? _

A To an extent, yes. I was there when she let
put. I was in the room when the baby bled ocut. An
Lneurysm, so to say, when you bleed, it just £ills your
face and it just looked like a vacuum -- they had turned
an air hoge on and just blew her face up is what it looked
like.

Q. Just tell us if you can recall what, if anything
élse, other than what you've already told us about what
you observed about the baby after she had gotten into the

hogpital.

' When we got her into the trauma rcoom, when we
¢pened her mouth, we did -- when you're trained in CPR,

At

rou always do a tongue sweep to make sure thexe's nothing
blocking the airway because we didn't know if ghe was
ghoking or what. When we opened her mouth to do a tongue

gweep, we noticed bruising along the top of the gum line

hexre and bad on the -- right here on your gum --
Q. Right.
A. -~ with that little tendon that comnects your

lip to the top of the jaw.

Q. I believe they call that your fremulum. Would
tthat be right? _

A. I think so.

Q. _ Okay .

etk Bt
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Direct Examination - Smith 365
a. I think so. But I noticed that was really
bruised, and it was kind of oozing blood. It was real
~ed. 1 noticed bruising around her lips and a little
bruising on her forehead. Somewhere on her forehead.

Q. Did you observe anything about the child in your
pbservations of her?

A. Not at that point. That was -- at that point

is when I left to go find out the age, how old she was,
jate of birth or statistical information for ocur systems.
Q. At any point after that, did you have an
ppportunity to observe the child and notice any other --
knything else?

A. When we -- when I went back and I was talking

ith Dr. Patterson, I noticed that she was -- you know --
nd still blue and her stats were going down again right
efore she bled out, but other than that, I didn't notice
nything else. I wasn't there for a lot of it,

Q. Did you have occasion to talk with the defendant
any more after that one conversati&n that you described
for us?

A, It was kind of back and forth. It was just --
ke just said that she had went to the store, and he
¢hanged her. She spit up and he changed her and put her
To bed while she was gone. While the wother was gone, and

e didn't understand what was going on.

Q. You went out there more than one time?
A. Yes, sir. It was bits and pieces at a time we
yere getting -- rumning back into --

Q. Did he ever ask you for any more cigarettes?
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¢ross-Examination - Smith

A No. about that time is when the police
¢officers showed up.

Q. Okay.

BY MR. HARPER: The Court indulge me just a
moment, Your Honor. We'll tender this witness at
this time.

BY THE COURT: Cress-examination.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. SERMOS:

Q. Yes. A phlebotomist. In common parlance,

vhat's the main job a phlebotomist does?

A, To draw blcod.

Q. And to be a phlebotomist, do you need to have a

PN or RN or anything like that?

A. No. A phlebotomist is its own training in

itself.

Q. You said that Mr. Havard asked for a cigarette?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. It!'s certainly not uncommon for somebody in an

gmergency room area to ask for a cigarette or want to

gmoke one, is it?

a. No, sir. It's not.

Q. or to be nervoug either, is it?
A No, sir, It's not.

BY MR. SERMOS: No further questions, Your
Honor.

BY THE COURT: Any redirect?

BY MR. HARPER: None, Your Honoxr. All right.

You may step down. Will this witness be excused by

366
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both sides?

BY MR. SERMOS: Yes, Your Honor. _

BY THE COURT: You'!ll be releaséd under your
subpoena. You may go.

BY MR. HARPER: Yes, sir. We would excuse her
too, Your Honor. A
(Witness steps down.)
| BY THE COURT: Who does the State call as your
next witness?

BY MR. HARPER: We would call Ms. Angel Godbold,
Your Honor.

BY THE CQURT: Angel Godbold.

BY MR. HARPER: May I proceed, Your Honoxr?

BY THE COURT: Xes, sir.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

%Y MR. HARPER:

Q. Would you state your name, please, ma'am.

A. Angela Godbold.

0. and, Ms. Godbold, where do you live?

A. I live in the Mark Apartments on Lower Woodville
Road.

Q. And what is your employment, Ma. Godbold?

A. I'm a registered nurse in the emergency
department at Natchez Community Hospital and.at Natchez
Jegional Medical Center. .

Q. How long'have-you been working as an emergency
joom nurse?

A. Since 1994.

Q. And how long have you been working at Comﬁunity

PDirect Exmamination - Godbold 367
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Direct Exmaminatioﬁ - Bodbold 368
Hospital as a emergency --

A. Since 199%1.

Q. and so since '94 at Community you'wve heen
working in the ER?

A. Well, actually, since 1991. I was an emergency
room technician while I was in nursing school, and when I
tompleted nursing school, I started nursing in the ER in
94 .

Q. Okay. 1I'd like to direct your attention to
February of this year, 2002, specifically the evening of
Thursday, February the 21st, and ask if you had occasion
fo be working in the ER at Community on that particular
late?

A. I did.

Q. Ckay. 1I'll ask if you had occasion to be
[nvolved in the treatment of an infant child by the name
Gf Chloe Madison Britt?

A, Yes, sir. I did.

Q. Would you tell us how you came to be involved in
Lhat, please, matam. In that treatment.

A.  Well, actually, I was in the room with another
patient. We were very busy in the emexrgency room, and we
%ad just gotten an ambulance patient, and I was in the ER
Toom treatment one, and I heard someone yelling as they
Were coming through the door. And as I came out the door,
1 saw one of the lab technicians, Shelley-Smith, carrying
3 limp infant saying, "Call a code." &bout that time,
Patricia Murphy who is another RN that works with me

¢alled a code, and they went on down to the trauma room

e e b A
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and -~
Q. Would you tell us what calling a code means?
A, Calling a code is a cardiorespiratory arrest.
ou have a code team which is a predesignated group of
becople who respond, usually people who are cextified in
ndvanced cardiac life sﬁpport.
Q. And you said that Ms. Murphy made the -- called
thé code?
a. Yes, sir.
0. And how do you do that?
A. Ybu access an intercom system that goes
Lhroughout the hospital, and the designated people come to
gcene.
Q. Respond?
A. Yesg, sir.
Q. And are you, in.fact, one of the people that
vould be responding to a code?
A. Yes, sir. Actually I think that night, I was
Fhe charge nurse in the ER.
Q. Okay. So what did you do after the code was
?eing called?
A. Well, I noticed it was an infant. So I secured
vhat we call a pediatric Broslow Hinkie resuscitation
ystem, which is a system we use specifically for
pediatric patients that helps the code process.
Q. Okay. And what did you do once you had
retrieved that?
A. I went down to the code room where they were

£1ready coding the infant.

Direct Exmamination - Godbold 369
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Direct Exmamination - Godbold

you got in thexe?
A. If T recall correctly, respiratory was already

Fhere. Dr. Patterson was there.

Q. She's the BR doctor that was on call that
night?
A. Yes, sir. Patricia Murphy was there. She's

another RN, There was another RN that was down there by
the name of Jennifer Cupit Wise who has since moved to

&lorida. She is no longer employed at the hospital.  And

really recall specifics at this time.

Q. A lot of running in and out and that type of
Fhing?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Tell us what happened once you got down there.

_Vhat did you do at that point?

A, Well, actually, you open up this resuscitation

ystem which is colored coded, and what it is, is it's a
ape and you measure the infant from head tb toe, and
herever the foot falls is what color pack that you will
ge on this infant. Everything is premeasured.

Hverything is done up -- a pediatric code is very

¢f helps things go smoothly.

Q.  Does the size of the child warrant how much
&edication you would give them?

A. Absolutely. And to what size endotracheal

fubes to use which is the tube that we put down their

370

0. Who, if anyone, if you can recall was there when

then myself and there were a few other people that I can't

ftressful, more so than an adult code, and so it just kind

P T SR T Y



LASER BONDFORMA &) PENGAD « 1:850-031-6508 » www pergad.com

1o

11

12

13

14

i5

16

17

i8

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

Direct Exmamination - Gedbold . 371
Lhroat into their lungs to help them breath.

Q. And that's the reéason it's color coded so you
won't have to try to figure out which ones --

A. Absolutely.

Q. -- you can just grab the ones that go with the
bize of the child.

A. Absolutely. Used to, they have to measure the
pinky finger, and it was some multiplication. It was kind
$f complicated, and if you didn't do it regularly, you
could forget.

Q. Y'all, in fact, did that with Maddie Britt that

%ight or Chloe Madison Britt?

»

Yes, sir.

bid you know this child prior to that?
No, sir.

Did you know her mother?

Just briefly. Her grandmother -- her mother

5 » 0 ¥ oo

I
jai

Wyorke -- ﬁhe grandmother worked in ICU.

The baby's grandmothexr?

Yes, sir.

Which would have been Rebecca Britt's mother?

Yes, sir. Lillian Watson.

S0 you knew the grandmother.

P O ¥ 0O F DO

Right.

Q. And so y'all determined which kit to use. Tell
ﬁé what happened after you do that or what you did in this
pprticular case.

A. Well, while they were trying to resuscitate

the child -- there are several -- on a code team, people

I
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access on this child which the child was cyanotic when she
bame in which is blue. She had a blue color. She didn't

have a pulse. There were no spontanecus respirations. So

fwhile the physician is trying to ascertain an airway and
ecure it, I needed to get an IV on this child so we can
et some medﬁcihes in this child. So that's what I was
oing, and because she appeared to have been pulseless for
n amount of time because she was blue, I figured it was
1t's going to be difficult. And so with some luck, we got
an IV on her and started giving her fluids and
mwedications.

Q. Did she make any kind of recovery at all, oxr

ere y'all able to get any kind of --

A. Not initially. She was in what we call H
gystole. She had no pulse and no respirations. She was
eing bagged at the time which is with the awboo bag, the

pask that's over the ~-- fits‘over the face and squeeze
with the hand, and it blows the oxygen to the lungs
Iecause the ER doctoxr was having trouble inﬁubating her
which is when they put the tube down into the lungs.

Q. Do you have any idea .why that was being -- why
fthat was difficult?

A, No, sir. Not at the time.

Q. Would you just go ahead and describe your
tHreatment of her, what was going on in there, and what you
did and what you observed.

A, Well, we were securing the IV access, pushing

the medicines which is giving the drugs through the IV

birect Exmamination - Godbold 172 _]
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according.to the protocol, and there's different drugs
hat you give. They were continually bagging and
attempting to intubate the child. They called the child's
physician whom at the beginning they thought was Dr.
tadle, and I think later on they had made a mistake and it
was Dr. Dar. But Dr. Cadle had arrived in the emergency

room, and Dr. Cadle intubated the child and scon after

chat - -

Q. Were you present when she did that?

A. Yes, sgir.

Q. Was Dr. Patterson present when she did to your
recollection?

A. Yes, sir. I think so.

0. Now, Dr. Cadle, is she currently residing here
in Natchez, still practicing in Natchez?

A. No, sir. I think she's moved to Arkansas.

Q. All right. But you were there and you observed

her. You said she was able to intubate her?

A.  Yes, sirxr. &And I think soon after she intubated

er, Dr. Dar came, and I think she -- they had realized
hat they had called the wrong physician- There was some
onfusion there which,'I guess, 1is understandable with
verything that is going on, and so Dr. Cadle turned the
¢are of the patient over to Dr; Dar.

Q. Okay. I believe Dr. Dar is a pediatrician; is
that right?

A, She is. Yes, sir.

Q. And I assﬁme Dr. Cadle too?

A. Yeg, sir.

Direct Exmamination - Godbold ' 373
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Q. Okay. Now, if you would, tell us what happened
bfter she was intubated, if anything.

a. After she was intubated and we were giving her
fore drugs, and she was getting positive pressure
véntilation, we were able to éventually get a pulse back
bn hey, and so she_began to pink up and as she began to
Pink up, we noticed some bruising.

Q. Where did you see bruising? Did you actually

see it yourself?

A Yeg, sir.

Q. Where did you see bruising?

a, I saw bruising on the imner thighs, right and
left and --

BY MR. HARPER: If the Court will indulge me
just one moment. May I apbroach the witnegs?

BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.
gY MR. HARPER:
Q. Ms. Godbold, 1I'll show you what's been marked as
?tate's Exhibit 4 and tell me whether or not you can
tecognize what's in that photograph?
A. Yes, sir. It's a bruise here and then seems
like there's a bruise there and there also.
Q. Does this fairly and accuraﬁely repregent the
dondition of the bruises you saw on the child on that
particular night, February 21st of 20022
A. Yes, sir.

BY MR. HARPER: Your Honor, may I publish that to
the jury?

BY THE COURT: 7You'll be allowed to publish

Direct Exmamination - Godbold 374
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Nirect Exmamination - Godbold ‘ 375
Exhibit 4 to the jury.
{Mr. Harper passes Exhibit 4 to the jury.}
BY MR. HARPER:
Q. I am sorry. I didn't mean to interrupt you, Ms.
Jodbold. You say you observed these bruises as she pinked
hp. Did you observe anything else at that time?
A. She also had some bruising on her head, the
Frontal part here.
Q. Okay .
BY MR. HARPER: May I approach, Your Honor?
BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.
BY MR. HARPER:

Q. Ms. Godbold, I am going to hand you what's been

fmarked as State's Exhibit 6 which purports to be another

photograph of this child shortly after her death and ask

Lf vou can identify what's in that picture.
A, Yes, sir. There's some bruising here, like
three little things right there.
Q. I'11 ask does that fairly and accurately
Eepresent the bruises that you observed on her on that
hight of February 2ist of 20027
A. Yes, sir.
BY MR. HARPER: May I publish it, Your Honor?
BY THE COURT: You'll be allowed to publigh
Exhibit 6 to the jury.
(Mr. Harper passes Exhibit 6 to the juxy.)
BY MR. HARPER:
Q. All right. What, if anything, else did you

bbserve, Ms. Godbold, at that time?
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birect Exmamination - Godbold | 376
A. Well, after she was intubated and she had an IV,
Che main stays of emergency room treatment are what we

rall the ABC's. Airway, breathing, and circulation. I

fnean, you have got to establish these three in order to

.pustain. Usually when a pediatric patient comes in,

pediatric patients don't have heart attacks more than
}ikely. If they have heart problems, they're usually
bongenital or they're born with them. Patients this age
Tre usually going to aspirate or choke, which is that, or
from trauma. So, anyway, we started looking over this

bhild because, okay, we've got to figure out what caused

rhis child to arrest.

0. What, if anything, do you recall what, if
#nything, she was wearing when she came into the emergency
room?

A, Initially when they took her down to the
emergency room, I was not there. I was busy securing the
kit, but £rom what I understand, éhe had a T-shirt on and
diaper because I recall thé other nurse saying that she

had to cut the T-shirt off to put the electrodes on her

&hest.
Q. When you got there, what was she wearing?
A. Just. a diaper.
Q. I'm sorry. I didn't mean to interrupt. You

¢an go ahead and tell ug --

A, That's fine. As we obtain circulation on this
¢hild and began to have a heart rate and we got a blood
pressure, we're like, okay. Let's get some more vital

$igns on this baby. So we needed to do a rectal temp

[P (I TSN
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Direct Exmamination - Godbold

lvhiich is routipe in the emergency room. 8o we rolled the
baby over on its side, and I was just blown away by what.
Saw. |

Q. Describe it for us, please, ma‘am.

A. I saw a rectum that was about the size of a
uarter.

0. Is that unusual in an infant?

A. Yes, sir. It's very umusual.

Q. What would a normal infant's rectum appear --

how would it appear to you?

ook for it, vou look for a bunch of striated tissue that
romeg together in a tight pucker. It's not hardly even
bpen. Adults are basically the same way. It's not
hnything that's just open and there. It's really tight
and cloged. And it's -- you don't see that in an infant,
specially something that large.

Q. Ckay. Was there anything significant about

Hischarging oxr anything like that that. you were able to

bbserve?

A. S5tool would ooze from it because there was no
Lone.

Q. -Muscle tone?

A. No tone. And there were little lacerations

ibove the rectum that stool would ooze cut of that also.
Q. When you say lacerations, you're talking about
Cears.

A. Yes, sir.

377
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A. The rectum -- you really can't see it. When you

Fhe -- I mean, you said it was large. Was there anything
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Direct Exmamination - Godbold 378
BY MR. HARPER: May I approach the witness,
Your Honor?
BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.
BY MR. HARPER:
Q. I am going to show you a photograph that's
maxrked as State’'s Exhibic 5 which purports to bhe a
photograph of the anal area of this Chloe Madison Britt
shortly after her death and ask if you'll look at that and

cell if that loocks familiar to you?

A, It does, but honestly, that doesn't do it
justice.
Q. When you wmean -- explain that to me what you

mean by that.
A It was wuch larger. What I saw was --
Q. If you would on this photograph --

BY MR. CLARK: Your Honor, we're --

BY THE COQURT: Yes, sgir,

BY MR. CLARK: If that picture doesn't
accurately depict the picture at the time, then it
should be inadmissible then.

BY THE COURT: 1I1'l]l overrule that objection. I
undexrstand what her testimony to be. She is
describing some differences, but I will overrule that
objection.

BY MR. HARPER:

Q. You said it doesn't do it justice. Does it
gppear to be similar to what you saw? Does it appear to
be --

A. It does, but there's like -- you see the tears
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Fﬁirect Exmamination - Godbold 379

here and here, and stool was just leaking from it. It was

~-- (pause)
Q. How long have you worked in ER?>
A Gosh. Since '91.
Q. Seen a lot of stuff in there?
A Yes, sir.

BY MR. SERMOS: Objection, Your Honor. Leading
question.

BY THE COQURT: I sustain as Eo leading.,
B3Y MR. HARPEﬁ:
Q. How, if anyway, did this affect you when you saw
that, Ms. Godbold, as compared to other cases that you've
worked over the years you've worked in the ER?
A. I went and saw a counselor.

BY MR. HARPER: May I publish this to the jury,
Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: Yes. You'll be allowed to
publish Exhibit 5 to the jury.

BY MR. HARPER:

Q. You say you went and saw a counselor.
A, I did.
Q. For what purpose?

BY MR. SERMOS: Objection, Your Honoxr. This is
not relevant to the proceedings here; Whatever she
did, she's testifying here as to what éhe perceives
as to the infant.

BY THE COURT: I'm going to sustain the

objection to any further questions along that line.

BY MR. HARPER:
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Q- S0 after you obserxrved this in the rectal area,
What, in anything, else did you see as far as the child
was concerned, Ms. Godbold?

A, Well, immediately, we notified the physician
rhat was there, and she loocked. BAnd then they started
looking -- you know -- ét other areas, really looking over
Lhe child in a different way.

Q. Different perspective?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. and what, if anything, did you observe, if
hnything, otﬁer than what you've already described to us
coday.

A. Most of the other things, the physiciang did. I
think they noted rectal hemorrhages which I didn't ~-

Q. You didn't see that?

A. No, sir.

Q. Well, you couldn't testify about what somebody
told you. Was there anything else that you pergonally saw
besides what you --

A. She had a torn frenulum.

Q. All right. Would you describe that for us and
tell us what you're talking about.

A It's the little piece of skin that attaches the
lip to the gum. If you raise your 1lip up, there's a

little line of skin there. Thét’s vour frenulum. You
#150 have one on the lower lip. ‘

Q. Okay . What would that be indicative of, having
g torn frenulum like that?

A. Well --

Direct Exmamination - Godbold 380.
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Direct Exmamination - Godbold

BY MR. CLARK: She's not -- I don't believe
she's been qualified to answer that gquestion --

BY THE COURT: I will sustain.

BY MR. CLARK: -- Your Honor, we object.

BY THE COURT: I sustain. '

BY MR. HARPER: May I approach, Your Honor?

BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.
BY MR. HARPER: |
Q.'. I'm going to show you first what's been marked
s State's Exhibit 7 which purports to be a photograph of
Chloe Madison Britt shortly after her death, and ask if

you can identify that photograph?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Is there anything sighificant on that
photograph?

A. Lots of facial swelling.

BY MR. RARPER: Your Heonor, we'd ask that we be
able to publish this --
BY MR. HARPER:
Q. Does it fairly and accurately represent how she
Looked with her mouth closed on that particular date?
A. To the best of my knowledge. Yes, sgir,

BY MR. HARPER: I'd ask that we would be able
to publish this photograph.

BY THE COURT: You'll be allowed to publish
Exhibit 7 to the jury.
(Mr. Harper passes to the jury.)
BY MR. HARPER:

Q. I now hand you, Ms. Godbold, what's been marked

381
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irect Exmamination - Godbold 382
as State's Exhibit 8 which purports to be a photograph of
Chloe Madison Britt shortly after her death and ask if you
can identify what's in that photograph.
A. Yes, sir. It's showing the lacerated frenulum,
upper lip.
Q. Does that fai;ly and accurately reflect the
injury that you saw to her on thakt particular evening?
A. Yes, sir, |

BY MR. HARPER: We ask that we be allowed to
publish that to the jufy.

BY THE COURT: You will be allowed to publish
Exhibit 8 to the jury.
BY MR. HARPER:
Q. Okay. Ms. Godbold, again, anything else that
o1 obéerved besides what you héve already described fox
s on this particular child that night?
A With regard to the code or --
Q. With regard to any injuries you observed or with
regard to anything else that occurred that night while you
vere involved in the treatment of the child?
A. Just, of courde, before she had -- we lost a
pulse on her again, she apparentl& herniated which the
brain was swelling and just -- her face just swoll due to

the brain herniation and then just a few --

Q. When you say brain herniation --
A. I'm soxxy.
Q. -~ in laymen's terms, what would you mean by

A. Well, bloecd, when it comes in contact with brain
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tissue or sometimes any other tissuve, it's an irritant.

Sc it causes swelling and, you know,-within the skull,
there is only just limited room to_allow for swelling and
so whenever there’s an increased pressure, an object wants
to go to an area where there is lesser pressure. So what
happens is it wants to Qo downward toward the spine so --
Q. So you obsgserved swelling. Did you observe
anything else?

A. Yeg, sir. She had what we call rhinorrhea,
fwhich is leakage of clear cerebral spinal fluid out the
hares or the noge, and how this is justified is when that
happened and I noticed that that was coming from her nose,
I did a glucostick on it which is what diabetics use to

check their blood sugaxr. Cerebral spinal f£luid has sugar

in it because the brain uses thirty percent of the total

pody's glucose. So if it was just mucus, there would be
ho sugar in it. So I checked it and it was like 424 --

BY MR. SERMOS: Objection, Your Honor. This has
gone on and she hasn't been tendered as an expert
witneés, and we feel that her testimony is going
beyond her training or beyond the scope of her
testimony.

BY THE COURT: All right. I'l]l sustain as to
any further questions along this line.

BY MR. HARPER: Okay.
BY MR. HARPER:
Q. Did you observe anything else about the

child's ~- any other injuries to her than those you have

Tlready descfibed?

Direct Exmawmination - Godbold 383
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Direct Exmamination - Godbold 384
A. No, sir.
Q. And you indicated that y'all began to lose the
pulse when this -~
A. Yes, sir.

-- swelling took place.
A. Yes, sir.
0. And these other things. Did you observe
an?thing else besides the swelling?
A, No, sir.
Q. Okay. And were you able to bring the pulse back
pr tell us what happened after that, if you would.
A. No, sir. BAfter she apparently herniated from;, I

rould assume, head trauma, then we couldn't get much of

bnything back on her. I think she stayed on the vent for

Bust a little bit longer, but I think scon after that, Dr.
Dar pronouncéd her.

Q. Dead.'

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. Did you have occasion -- Ms. Godbold, I
know you were involwved in the treatment, but did you ever
nave any occasion to talk with the mother of the child ox

rhe defendant or anyone else that was there?

A. No, sir.

Q. You weren't involved in any of the conversations
#ith them?

A. No, sir. I never had any conversations with
“hem.

BY MR. HARPER: The Court will indulge me just a

moment, Your Honor.
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Direct Exmamination - Godbold 385
{Mr. Harper and Mr. Rosenblatt confer.)

BY MR. HARPER: Your Honor, we'd tender this
witness at this time.

BY THE COURT: Any cross-examination?

BY MR. SERMOS: We have no questions, Your
Honbr.

BY THE COURT: All right. You may step down.
Would both sides release this witness from the
subpoena?

BY MR. SERMOUS: Yes, Your Honor. We will.

BY MR. HARPER: Yes, Your Honoxr. We have no
objection to that.

BY THE CCURT: You may step down, and you'll be
released from your subpoena.

(Witness steps down.)}

BY THE WITNESS: Thank you.

BY THE COURT: You wmay do. Ladies and
gentlemen, it's going to be time to take our lunch or
noon recess. We're going to recess dourt until 1:30.
You be allowed to eat over at the Eola. So that
should give you plenty of time. If thére's any
problem, Mrs. Angelethy, let me know. Again, keep in
mind, what I said about no contact with anybody
involved in this case. 8o let's let the jurors leave
before anyone else. Court will recess until 1:30,

{after a lunch recess from 12:30 until 21:30, the following
was made oﬁ record, to-wit:)

BY THE.COURT: Who deoes the State call as your

next witness?
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Direct Examination - Murphy

call Mrs. Patricia Murphy.
BY THE COURT: Patricia Murphy.
PATRICIA MURPHY,
having been duly and legally sworn, answered
guestions on her ocath as fqllows, to-wit:
BY THE COURT: Come have a seat, please.
BY MR. ROSENBLATT: May 1 proceed, Your Honor?
BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. ROSENBLATT:
Q. Mrs. Murphy, you're a nurse here in Natchez?‘

A. Yes, I am,

0. What kind cf nurse are you? Do you have a
Epecialty?
A. I am an emergency room nurse. I have had the

oette; part of thirty years in nursing, and twenty years
Dﬁ that have been in the emergency room.

Q. And where do you work, please, ma'am.

A. I have retired from Natchez Regional after
fwenty—five years of service there, and I am now employed
vith Natchez Community emergency room.

Q. Have long have you been there?

A, Full time, a year.

Q. And you were working there on February the 2ist
bf this past year?

A. Correct.

Q. Do you remember that night, Mrs. Murphy?

A. Yes, I do.

(

386 1
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Direct Examination - Muxrphy 387
Q. What about that night is memorable to you? Do
you remember a particular patienﬁ that came in, a little
baby?

A. Yeg, I do. On the night about 9:30, somewhere
along in there, Shelley Smith, one of lab technicians or
phlebotomist over at the hospital, came running through
the doors holdihg a baby and screamed out that the baby
%as not breathing. Call a code. All of the emergency
room perscnnel on duty, including the doctor, all ran down
to our major trauma room. I lingered behind for a minute
or Ewo to page overhead for a code 300 which is an
emergency. And during this emergency, other people
throughout the hospital come to assist us and give us
support. Right after 1 paged the code 300, I went down to
the treatment room. They had the baby on the bed.
Resuscitated measures had been started like amboo bag,
which is breathing for the baby, and cardiac compressions.
e &ere assisting on getting the baby hooked up to a
cardiac monitor and getting an IV gtarted and that sort of
thing.

Q. A pretty frantic scene? .

A. Yes.

Q. Mrg. Murphy, when you say "they," would you kind
pf tell us who was there?

A. "They" being Dr. Patterson, BAngela Godbold, RN.
[ think Steve Robertson was the nurse from the intensive
rare unit that responded, two respiratory therapists were
Fhere, and myself.

Q. What did you do next?
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birect Examination - Murphy : 388
-A. At that time, I cut the baby's T-shirt off of

it, noticing that the baby was clean as a whistle. I mean
it looked like it had just come out of a bathtub, had just
been put on a fresh T-shirt. There was no drooling, no
milk formula, nothing on the clothes. The baby was super-
clean.

Q. Is that tybical?

A. No. Not by any means. A baby this size usually
will be -- will have some drool on it because it's

Feething at that point, you know. I then -- Dr. Patterson
was asking about history. Does anybody know anything |
about the baby. What's happened. 8o --

Q. And forgive me. What's the point of that? Why
is it important to know history?

A, It's important to know why, possible clues as

o why the baby is not breathing.

Q. What sort of information would be important to
rou? |

A. Usually a baby or a small child that has had a
rardiac respiratory arrest, they will usgually -- the death

is usually precipitated by an airway obstruction oxr some

Fype of respiratory problem that causes the heart not to

peat. Usually if you go so long without breathing, sooner

br latexr, the heart is-going to stop.

Q. So it's not the heart troubles --
- A, Babies is usually -- they quit breathing or
their heart stops beating because of a respiratory problem
?nd not a car@iac problem.

Q. And it was a respiratory problem y'all were

st B amrd m o ot el b b
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Direct Examination —‘Murphy : 389
investigating initially?

A. Well, vou in?estigate the whole situation.

Okay. The baby was not breathing. It did not have a
heart beat. You‘ve got to find out what precipitated this
event .

Q; Was that part of your job?

A. Correct.

Q. And what did you do?

A. I saw that there were people there to take care
of the baby. Okay. I left the scene and went out to the
waiting room to talk to the family.

Q. And who did you talk to? Do you recall?

A. I talked to Rebecca, the baby's mother, and a
yvoung wman. Did not know who he was or what relationship

he was to the baby.

Q. Do you know who he is now? Did --

A, Yes, I do.

Q. -~ you subseguently learn who he is?

A. I have subsequently -- later that night, I

found out who he was.

Q. And who is he?

A. Havard. Jeffrey Havard.

Q. Is he here today?

A. Yes, he is.

Q. Would you point him out and describe what he's

hearing, please.
A. The young man sitting at this table right there.
BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Is that sufficient for the

' Court to recognize --




LASEA BOND FOAMA (& PENGAD » 1 500-531-6040 « wiww pengad com

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
i8
18
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

29

BY THE COURT: 1t's sufficient. Let the record
so reflect.
BY MR. ROSENBLATT:
That 's the same wman you talked to that night?

Correct.

RS

Why did you talk to him?

A. When -- I don't know who it was that initially
put the mother of the baby, Rebecca, and this young man
into our triage room. I went out to go find the family.
hey were in the triage rcom, the two of them. I went in

Fnd noticed that they were both visibly'shaken. They were

crying, upset. Just -- just totally shocked feeling or
acting.
Q. What information were you able to get from them

‘that was of help to you?

A, Well, when I agked them what happened, both of
them gtarted talking at the same time. Both of them -- I
Lind of stopped them. I said tell mé what happened.
Rebecca told me that she had gone to the store. They gave
Lhe -~ she gave the baby hexr medicine. She left to go to
he store. Jeffrey was supposed-to bath the baby and put
her to bed. And I said, what happened. Be said, I
bathed the baby and put her to bed.® I.asked him, I =aid,
bo what happened during this length of time. He said, "I
bathed her and put her to bed.”

Q. He didn't offer you any other explanation?

A. Nothing. I said, so, Rebecca gave her her

Pedicine and she left to go to the store, and when you

ere -- while she was gone, you bathed the baby and put

Direct Examination - Murxrphy 390
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Direct Examinétion - Murphy 391
her in the bed. Yes. And I said, so, did anything
happen? No. I said nothing out of the ordinary happened,
did it? No. No.. Everything was fine. Everything is
fine. Just bathed hexr and put her in the bed.

Q. And did you go back to report that?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. What was the scene when you went back?

Al When I went back to the room, resuscitative
measures were still in progress, and I stepped up to the
Jend of the bed and Angela Godbold said -- she turned
around and --

BY MR. SERM0OS: Objection, Your Honor. Hearsay.

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Your Honor, this is not
being introduced to prove the truth of it. It's to
set the scene of what this witness is testifying to,
to put it into a context. She's not testifying as to
the truth of what Ms. Godbold said. It's not
hearsay.

BY THE COURT: I am going to sustain the
objection. She can testify about what she cbserved
and what happened.

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Thank you, Your Honor.

RY MR. ROSENBLATT:

Q. Mrs. Murphy, you understand you can just say
Fhat --

A, Yes. What happened is that when I went back
into the room I asked her how was it going, and she turned
pround and she said, "Look at this."

Q. ~ wWhat did you see?

b
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A. And she raised the baby's legs up, and I saw its
rectal area.

Q. What did you see of the rectal area?

A, The rectum was gaped open a diameter of two to
two and a half centimeters which equals about an inch in
diameter, which would probably equal the size of a

quarter. Just gaped open.

Q. Is that normal?
A. That is not normal by any means. The rectum is
usually -- the rectum sphincter muscle is usually tight

and closed.

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: May I approach the witness,
Your Honor?

BY THE COURT: Yes, sir,
BY MR. ROSENBLATT:
Q. Mrs. Murphy, I'm going to show you what's been
narked as Exhibit 5.
A. Uh-hum.
Q. This is a picture rebortedly taken shortly aftex
the baby's death. T ask you to describe in relation to

what you saw that night to what's depicted in that picture

bf the baby's anal area.

A, Ckay .
Q. Does that reflect what you saw that night?
A. No.

Q. In what way? In what way does it fail to
reflect what you saw?
A, When I saw the baby's rectum, it was gaped copen.

Dpen. I'm talking like this. Okay? This looks like




LABER S0OND FOAM A @ PENOAD + 1+B00-831-6887 = wrw pangad.com

C

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
i8
13
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

29

Direct Examination - Murphy 393
possibly might be after rigor mortis has set in.

Q. Okay.

A. That it does not gape open like that. BAlthough
the rectum right heré is still -- it's elongated. Looks
like it might have some tears around the sphincter.

Q. And you --

A. So that looks better than what I saw insofar as

the body was not £irm and rigor mortis had not set in at

that time.

Q. Mrs. Murphy, how long have you been a nurse?

A. Twenty-seven years, I think. Something like
that.

0. You've seen all sorts of stuff in that time, I
guess.

A. I have geen just about the worst of the worsk,

but this has been the worst.

Q. Have you seen sexual trauma before?’
A, Yes, I have.
Q. The wounds that you saw to that rectal area, did

that indicate to sexual trauma?

A. Oh, yeah. Oh, yeah.

Q. You sound very clear on that?

A. It definitely appeared it to my notion.

Q. Did you notice any other injuries on the baby?

A. The baby had some bruising around the rectum.
The perineum which -- or the wvulva which is up toward the

front and the vaginal area was bruised around the outer
[cissue. It had a couple of small bruises on each thigh.

It had some bruises on the forehead.

[ S P
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Direct Examination - Murphy 394
Q Mrs. Murphy, let me show you, if I may --

A Uh-hum.

Q. For example, in State'é Exhibit Number 4, you --
A Uh-=hum.

Q.- Would you indicate to the jury what you're

talking about when you're talking about bruising on the

leg.

A. Yeah. ©Little small bruises above the left knee

Q. Would you indicate that for the jury, please.
A. Above the left knee here, and there were some
small bruises over here on the right thigh.

On Exhibit Number --

Can y'all see that?

On Exhibit Number 6 --

This one. Okay.

Which is a -~

PO » 0 P o

Yes.

0. -- view of the baby's.face. Would you show us
he bruising there? |

A. The bruising across the forehead on the right
Forehead there. '

Q. And then finally, if I may, in Exhibits Number 7

and 8, explain to us the injury that you see in those

rhotographs.

A. The bruising on the mouth here on the upper lip
and kind of around the edge of the nose there, and then
this shows the torn frenulum which is that little piece of

skin that connects the upper lip to the gum above the

[P NP
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A. Nothing worked. We did get back a heart beat

jthat was -- for a while. I then left the room to go out

and talked with the mother again. Someone had moved her
to a different room out in the emergency room area, out in
the waiting room area, and I talked with her. By that
time, the sheriff's deputy was there, and he and I hoth
interviewed Rebecca. And she told me that the --

BY MR. SERMOS: Object to what she said is
hearsay. -

BY THE CQURT: 1I'll sustain.
EY MR. ROSENBLATT:
Q. That's fine. That's fine. I understand, Mrs.
Murpﬁy, we're just talking about what you observed. As
far as -- you mentioned the respiratory obstruction. Is
that what happened to Chloe? BShe choked, or did she die
from other means?
A. I think probably the pathologist or whoever did
Lhe autopsy would be able to better answer that, but fxom
vhat we observed when the actual death occurred after we
ot back a heart beakt, it was consistent with the subdural
pematoma or major head injury, better known as shaken

baby syndrome.

Q. So it turned out there was a head injury
involved?

A There was a head injury involved.

Q. But you never got any indication of that from --

A. None. None whatsoever,

Q. Mr. Havard or --

A,

None. They just put the baby to sleep to bed,

Direct Examination - Murphy 396
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teeth. Okay. That's torn also.
0. Have you seen an injury like that in children
ibefore?

A Usually older children that are walking that

'%ill fall or something liké that.

Q. and do what?

A, 2nd have a kind of a blow to the face that will
kind of xip the lip. They're usually walking or something
like that.

Q. And would this child have been walking at six
months?

A. I doubt it. Very few children do.

Q. What would cause this sort of injury in a
non-walking baby?

A, From everything that I have learned, it's
usually something large being shoved into the mouth, being
jammed into the mouth.

Q. We're not talking about a bhottle here, Mrs.
Murphy?

A. Unh-unh. I wouldn't think so.

Q. What happened next in the treatment of Chloe
Britt?

A, I stayed in the room for a while. I was -- I
Lhink I pushed a medicine for -- trying some differeﬁt
FeSuscitative things. Some dextrosé, some glucose to see
if we can -- if waybe the blood sugar was real low that
might have caused this. We attempted to revive her by
yiving her some D 10 W. Dextrose, ten percent.

0. Did anything work?

Direct Examination - Murphy 395
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Cross-Examination - Murphy
and that was it.
Q. As far as they --

A. As far as he told re.

witness --

BRY THE COURT: Cross-examination?

defense.
CROSS-EXAMINATION.

BY MR. CLARK:

Do you remember writing a statement?
A. Yes, I do.

Q.' Okay.

Honor?
BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.
(Mr. Clark shows document to Mr. Harper and Mr.
Rosenblatt.)
BY MR. CLARK:
Q. Do you recognize that?

Yes. That's my writing.

date?
A Uh-hum.
Q. What was the day?

A. The date is 2-22-02 at 4:15 a.m.

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Your Honor, I tender this

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: -- for questions of the

Q. Mrs. Murphy, do you remember giving or writing a
statement?
A. I am sorxy. I can't --

BY MR. CLARK: May 1 approach the witness, Your

Q. Is that the statement that you wrote on that

[P T Y
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Cross-Examination - Murphy 398

Q.
office.
A.

after the

© » 0O PO

So that had been written at the sheriff's

No. It was written in the emergency room right
incident.

To a police officer --

Yes, it was.

-~ or deputy sheriff?

Ronnie Coleman was there.

Would you please -- I believe it's on the third

page there. I believe I underlined it. for you.

A,

Q.

Uh-hum.

Where you -- did you not state in that statement

that you didn't see any abnoxmal --

°© ¥ o o P

different

opening.
part.
Q.

Abnormality?

Yes. Thank you.

I did write that.

With the baby's vagina at the time.

I did not notice any abnormality --

Right.

Around the vaginal area. Now, the vagina is
from the vulva. Okay.

All right.

It's two completely different afeas.

Okay.

The vagina being right in the ingide at the

The vulva is the tissue that is on the outer

Okay. And in your conversations with Ms. Britt

and with Jeff Havard, you said that he told you that he

0
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Redirect Exawination - Murphy ' 399
had given the baby a bath; is that right?
A. Uh-hum.
Q. And Ms. Britt was there. Did she say anything
about that?
A She said that when she left to go to the store,
he was supposed to give her a bath and put her to bed
while she was gone.
-QOkay. That's what she said.
Yes. Uh-hum.

Okay. Thank you very much.

L S S &

You're welcome.

BY THE COURT: Any redireckt?
REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: |

Q. Mrs. Murphy --

A. Uh-hum.

Q. Let me ask you. When you were interviewing
these people, it was sort of a frantic scene; was it not?

A. Uh-hum.

Q. And that everyone was sort of talking to you at
once?

A. They did until I stopped them, and said I can’'t
listen but to one at the time, you know.

Q. Now, Mrs. Murphy, in regard to Mr. Clark's
question about the vaginal area. You said it appeared to
you that the wounds that you saw were consistent with
someﬁhing large being inserted in the rectum?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. And something large being inserted into the
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mouth?

A. Uh-hum.

0. But you didn't see any evidence necessarily of
anything large being into this baby's vagina?

Al No, I did not.

Q. So two out of three?
AL Correct.
Q. Thank you, ma'am.

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: That's all I have, Your
Honox.

BY THE COURT: You may step down. Would each
side release this witness?

BY MR. SERMOS: Yes, we release her, Your Honor.

BY MR. HARPER: Yes, Your Honor. We'd release
her.

BY THE COURT: You'll be released under your
subpoena. You wmay go.

BY THE WITNESS: Thank you.

(Witness steps down.)

BY THE COURT: Who does the State call as your
next.witness?

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Your Honor, the State would
call Dr. Laurie Patterson.

BY THE COURT: Dr, Laurie --

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: I am sorry. Our next two
witnesses are physicians, and we believe we have them
available but --

BY THE COURT: Do you want to check real quick?

{Mr. Rosenblatt checks to see if the witnesses are in

et &
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Direct Examination - Pattexgon 401
- the courthouse.)

BY MR. HQRPER: Judge, apparently, Dr. Pattexson
is in route and should be here shortly. We have the
coroner here. 1If it please the Court, we'll go ahead
and call him now. I don't think -~-

BY THE CQURT: Is that what you desire to do?

BY MR. HARPER: Yes, sixr. We'll just go ahead
and call him at this point and she should be here --

BY THE COURT: James Lee,

BY MR. HARPER: Yes,_sir. James Lee. She's
here now, Your Honor. Let us just go ahead and call
hexr. I apologize to the Court. I hate to keep her
waiting now that I've got her rushed up here. 1
think she worked last night and woke her up to get
her down here.

BY THE COURT: Come forward and be sworn,
please.

DR. LAURIE PATTERSON,
having been duly and legally sworn, answered
guestions on her oath as follows, to-wit:

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: May I proceed?

BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. ROSENBLATT:

Q. Dr. Patterson, thank for being here with us
today. Would you tell this jury where you work and what
you do, please, ma'am.

A. I am an emergency room physician at Natchez

Community Hospital.
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Direct Examination - Patterson 402
Q. And how long have you been there?
A. Since 199%.
Q. Dr. Patterson, you were working last --
(The witness adjusts the microphone.)
Q. You were working last February; were you not?
A Yes, I was.
Q. Do you recall the night of February 21lst when
Chloe Madison Britt was brought to the emergency room?
A. Yes, I do.
Q. Would you tell us what your involvement in that

case was, please, ma'am.

A, I was the emergency room physician on duty there
that night.
Q. How did you first hear that something was wrong

or something was happening?

Al One of the phlebotomists from the lab came
running into the emergency room holding a baby séying that
there was a code.

Q. So what did you do?

A. I was sitting at the desk at that time. So we
jumped up and ran to the back to find -- room five was

considered our trauma room, and it was open, and that's

ithe room we carried the baby to.

Q. What steps did you all take?

A Basically when the baby was placed onto the
gurney at that time, my assessments are all head to toe,
head to toe, head to toe type of assessments, and
initially when the baby was placed on the gurney, the

nssegsment wag airway -- you know -- and in a child that
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Direct Examination - Patterson 403
age that's not breathing, one of the first things you
think is aspiration of some toy or samething perhapé oY
something respiratory. Her airway was open. Breathing,
she was not. Circulation, there was none. There were no
heart tones, and, you know, it was all new and it was a
baby. 8o we had to call respiratory. Of course, a lot of
it, my nurses were starting. They were doing their thing
while I am doing mine, but I did CPR as far as doing mouth
to mouth resuscitation until I could get respiratory there
to do gome bagging for me. We placed an oral airway andl
started to breath with a bag for the baby, and do you
basically-just want me to tell everything that --

Q. If you would, please.

A, That took place that night.

Q. When you first saw the baby, Dr. Patterson, you
said head to toe, head to toe. What do you mean by that?
Did you do a pretty good look\over?

A. Your first examine is airway, breathing, and
circulation. One of the first things I noticed about the
baby and for whatever reéson that it jumped out at me.
There were some bruises on her forehead. That kind of
struck me as odd, and it's kind of -- I guess it was
prominent enough that you would notice it even during a
time like that. That was one of the first things I
noticed.

Q. Ckay. I show you Exhibit Number &, Dr.
Patterson, and ask you to show that to the jury if that's
what you were talking about the bruising.

A. Yes.
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Direct Examination - Patterson 404
Q. Point it out to them, please.
A. Noticed the finger marks -- or I don't know

what they were, but the pad type marks on the child's

forehead.

Q. You observed that when you first began your
treatment?

A. Yes.

Q. At what point did you begin to suspect
something more than perhaps a clogged area?

A. Well, there was nothing visible in the airway,
and, with bagging, I was able to bag and hear bilateral
breath sounds. We were putting air through te her lungs.
So that tells me it's not obstructed basically by
something. If there was something lodged in'there, when I
bagged. her, I would not have gotten breath sounds on hoth
sides. We noted a toxrm frenulum.

Q. And, again, if I may, Dr. Patterson, I don't
wish to interrupt you, but Exhibit 7 and 8, would you show
the jury what you mean by the torn frenulum, please.

A. The frenulum isg the little piece of meat that
connectg that upper lip to the gum there. The little
piece that you could pinch like that. That's pretty
remarkable in a child this age. I do see it in the ER
because it scares parents when it happens. It bleeds, and
everything about the face is wvery vascular. Lots of
veggels. 8o if a child that's toddling around hits a
coffee table or falls and hits something like that, then
they!1ll tear that occasionally. That frenulum. It's not

naual, but it scares mom and dad to death because it
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Direct Examination - Patterson 405

bleeds so much.
Q. You see that a lot in infants that can't walk?
A, No, you don't see that in infants because
they're pretty much carxied wherever they do. It takes a
pretty good -- you're leoking at a blunt type thing
usually to cause a tear in frenulum. I did notice that.
0. bid you ever receive any history from anyone to

indicate that the baby had suffered an injury?

A. No. One of the nurses went out to talk to the
monm.

Q. Bﬁt you never got any information about_an
injury? |

A. There was no -- no known injury as far as they

were concerned.

Q. Did you ever observe anything that would
indicate to you that there had indeed been an injury?

A. Well, in trying to get hex breathing, doing CPR,
doing éhest compressions, and bagging, breathing for the
baby. One of the nurses -- one of the things you do is in
an infant is a rectal temp, and at that point, one of the
nurses that were there said, "Dr. Patkerson," and I
locked, and one of the most prominent things, I gquess, of
the whole deal for this child was the anal opening.

Q. What about the anal opening?

A. I would say it was open about the size of a

Q. Is that typical?
A No. If you ever -- as one of my nurses says,

it's a one way only route there. It's like a pucker, and

PR P P
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Direct Examination - Patterson 406
we take rectal temps on all our babies in the ER up to a
certain age because it's more indicative of what's really
going on, but the probe you use to take a rectal temp is
smaller that my little finger. It's a -- put KY and
you're able to get it in there without any problem because
they're able to pass a bowel movement, but that's because
your sgphincter or your tone there, those muscles there
opén up and let the stool out. Otherwise, it's stays
puckered shut, and her anal opening was about the size of
a gquarter and open. Vexy flaccid, like there was no tone
there, and there was a little tear there. There was some
cozing from her rectum. It was not solid stecol anyway.

It was just more of a thin, liguidy, just kind of drainage
from the rectal opening.

Q. Dr. Patterson, let me -- if I may show you
Exhibit Number 5 which purports to be a picture taken of
the baby's anus shortly after death and ask you to explain
that in relation to what you saw?

A. Uh, doesn’'t do it justice.

0. What do you mean by that?

A. I guess because the length of time that she's
been dead at this.point. You can definitely see -- it's,
say, that wide of an opening there or it's still length

wise open, bhut it's become more of an elongated thing than

-lwhat we saw that night, but you still see -- the opening

ig so long, and you can see the small tear there.
Q. Is that normal, Doctor?
A. Which one?

Q. The way that anus looks, is that normal?

s o b i
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Direct Examination - Patterson 407

A. No.

Q. Is what you saw normal?

A. No, not at all.

Q. Is what you saw indicative of sexual
penetration?

A. Yes. Or penetration of some sort. Yes.

Q. And the injuries to the baby's mouth, is that
suggestive of some sort of penetration with a large object
also?

A, Very likely. Something that caused a pushing,

a shearing type effect to the mouth would cause a torn
frenmulum in a baby.

Q. Dr. Patterson, I am just thinking especially in
emergency room of all the practices, you've probably seen
some pretty horrible victims come in.

A. True.

Q. Is what you saw on this child, does that suggest
to you sexual penetration?

A. Yas.

Q. The life threatening injuries to the baby apart
from the sexual penetration, would you describe to the
jury as to what you actually found out was wrong with this
child. In other words, what led to this child's death?

A. She had retinal hemoxrhaging.

Q. I am sorrxy. Again, for laymen, when you say
retinal hemorrhage --

A. When you looked into hexr eyes, it's like you're
geeing little patches of blood back in there, deep inside

the eyes. Retinal hemorrhaging is indicative in that age
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Direct Examination - Patterson 408
group of something like a shaken baby type thing where you
actually caused so much force that you're able to tear
those vessels there that you see those plagues or pools of
blocd deep in the eyes. That's the majority of the time
that you see retinal hemorrhaging in a baby. Trauma of
some sort.

Q. As you all continued your treatment of Chloe,
what steps did you take toward the last of what finally
made it all futile.

A. She was intuhated. In other words, a tube was
put down to breath in her lungs so that she could be
Froperly ventilated. CPR was done until -- her heart
actually did start to beat on its own for a period of
time, and we were able to stop the compressions and her
heart did maintain itself for a period of time. She was
receiving IV fluids. We had hoped to take her for a CT
scan to see if we could f£ind out -~ you know . more of
bhat was going on in her head that would have caused this

br be causing this, and we thought we had her stable there

"pnough for a few minutes to do that. But her final death,

you know, that!s the pathologist to tell you what her
final cause of death was, but what I saw, it was like a --
she just started to swell. Literally swell. Her face,
her head, everything just -- it was like it blew out from
the inside out and it just caused this actual visual
swelling of hexr head. At that point, we lost everything.
There was nothing left, and it was shortly after that the
rode was called.

Q. which is another way of telling us what?
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{cross-Examination - Patterson X 408

A. We pronounced her dead.

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: I tender this witness, Your

Honor. Dr. Patterson, answer any questions the

defense lawyers have.

BY THE COURT: Cross-examination.
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. SERMOS:

Q. Yes. Dr. Patterson, when you were talking about
the torn frenulum you talked about -- I think you said a
lot of times éspecially in children that a fall will cause
that to happen?

A. Uh-hum. Yes.

Q. Well, even though this child wasn't walking, if
this child had fallen from a height of, say, three feet
onto a hard surface that could cause that frenulum to
burst or bleed; isn't that correct?

A. Yes. Anything that would cause -- you know --
something, a force type of effect, ves.

Q. Like a_porcelaiq toilet top or gsomething like
that. Some solid object like that.

A If she fell on to it with her mouth.

Q. Okay. As far as the -- the other records, of
course, you talked about the retinal hemorrhaging, things
like that, and then ybu also talked about the rectum and
her anus. That injury in and of itself -- I mean, I know
it's hard to separate when you have a patient come in like
that. That injury itself or whatever-caused that to the
rectum, that itself would not be a life threatening or

life taking injury, would it?
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Cross-Examination - Patterson 410

A. The dilation of the rectum?

Q. Right.

A It would not be a life threatening injury unless
something had penetrafed it to -- or céused that opening

so far that it caused internal damage as far as her
abdominal cavity is concerned.

Q. You don't know that any of that happened, do
you?

A, No, I do not.

Q. and as far as -- you did state I believe
earlier. I want to make sure I understand that. Some
type of sexual abuse or sexual assault, but didn't you

also say even some kind of object could have caused that

wound?
A. Which wound --
Q. The wound on her rectum or the -- you saw that

was torn or a tear in the rectum or the anus?

A. Penetration with some object. I would have --
Q. All right. BAnd when you use the word "tear," is
that the same word in your language as a contusion?

A. No. A contusion is more just what we call a
bruise is a contusion. A tear is more the skin itself and
whatever tissgue depth it wmight go. It's actually torn.

Q. So would you be surprised if the medical |
examiner had called that a contusion instead of a tear?

A, Yes. I guess I would because there was some
fluid that was oozing from that sight also.

BY MR. SERMOS: Nothing further, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: Any redirect of this witness?

TS ST —
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Redirect Examination - Patterson ' 411
BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Briefly, Your Honor.
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. ROSENBLATT:
Q. Dy. Patterson, Mr. Sermos indicated that if this

baby were dropped just right could have caused that mouth

injury?
| A. Right.
o. Do you agree that's a possibility?

BY MR. SERMOS: Objecticn, Your Honor. He's
going into he could have gone into that on direct.
BY MR. HARPER: It's redirect of what he asked
him.
BY THE COURT: I overrule the objection at this
point. You may proceed, Mf. Rosenblatt.
BY MR. ROSENBLATT:-
Q. How would dropping the baby to cause that gaping
anal opening?
BY THE COURT: I sustain the objection to that.
Any other questions? You may step down. Will Dir.
Patterson be excused by both sides?
.ﬁY MR. ROSENBLATT: Yes, Your Honor.
BY THE COURT: You'll be released under your
subpcena.
BY MR. SERMOS: We excuse her also, Your Honor.
(Witness steps down.) -
BY THE CQOURT: All right. Who does the State
call as your next witness?
BY MR. HARPER: We call Dr. Dar, Your Honor,

DR. AYESHA DAR,
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Direct Examination - Dar ' © 412
having been duly and legally sworn, answered

guestions on her oath as follows, to-wit:

BY MR. HARPER: May I proceed, Your Honox?
BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. HARDPER:

Would you state your name, please, ma'am.
Dr. Dar. Baby's pediatrician.

And your first name, Dr. Par?

Ayesha.

Do you want to spell that for me?
A-y-e-s-h-a.

And your last name is D-a-xr, Dar?

b-a-r.

And what is your profession, Dr. Dar?
Pediatrician.

How long have you been --

Practicing?

Practicing?

Since '96. So that would make it six years.
Okay.

S8ix and a half years.

And you obvicusly went to medical school and

also a residency in pediatrics.

Right. That was prior to that.

And that was prior to your beginning your

Right. I've been a pediatrician since '93.

Now, Dr. Dar, I believe you have a practice here
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Direct Examination - Dar 413
in Natchez; is that correct?
A, That's correct.
Has that been since '96°?
That's been since 2000.
Okay.

Two and a half years.

A

And in your practice here, did you have occasion
to be the -- serve as the pediatrician for a young child

by the name of Chloe Madison Britt?

A, Yes.

Q. Do you recall when you first started treating
her?

A. Yes, When she was firstborn.

Q. Qkay. You were her doctor since her birth?

A. Right.

Q. and, of course, she passed away somewhere around

the time she was six months old; is that correct?

A. Right.

Q. And I'll ask you did you have occasion to be
present at the Natchez Community Hospital at the time of
her death?

A Right. Yes.

Q. Would vyou tell us how you came to be there that
night. Were you working that night?

A, I do call for own patients and that night close
to 10:00 that night, they called me for a baby who was
brought to the emergency room not breathing. They use the
word "panic." Baby is not breathing. I asked them who

that was, and they gave me a name, and I said I will be
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there. and I left and I live like two minutes from the
hospital. 8o I was there.

Q. When you got to the hospital, where was the
baby?
A. Baby was in the examining room in the back at
Natchez Community.
Q. Do you recall who, if anyone, was in room with
her when you got there?
A. Dxr. Patterson was there and a few nurses. I
might not be able to remember all of them.
Q. Okay .

AL and the baby was being intubated at that time by

Dr. Cadle.
Q. Dr. Cadle was there also?
A, S8he was there. 8She got there a few minutes

before I did.
Q. Now, Dr. Cadle, do you know what kind of doctor
she --
A. Pediatrician.
Bnd she practiced here in Natchez for --
Right.

-- for some time.

Q
A
Q
A. Right. And she moved in June to Arkansas.
0 S0 she practices in Arkansas now? |

A Now. Yes.

Q Do you know why she was there that night?

A. She was called by wmistake. The way the call

schedule has been designed, she was on call that night,

but I get call for my own patients. So it tock them a few

Direct Examination - Dar 414

[T T PR,
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Direct Examination - Dar 415
minutes to realize whose patient this is, and they called
me right after that. So it was like a few minutes between
her and me.

Q. And when you got there, you zaid Ehey were all
in the room with her. What were they doing when you got
there if you can recall.

A. Baby was on the examining table. They were
doing CPR, and Dr. Cadle was intubating the baby.

Q. When you say intubating, that's putting the tube
in?

A. Putting the tube in, airway was being secured,
and they were getting an IV in her.

Q. Okay .

A I put my gloves on and I looked at the baby. So
right now, baby was being treated. 8o I had a few minutes

to lock at the baby, and that's when I realized what had

happened.

Q. Why don't you tell us what you observed about
the baby.

A. Baby was being intubated. Was blue around the

mouth. Pupils were fixed. 8o I walk onto her head side
first, and so I had this luxury of being able to look in
her eyes because the rest was being done, and I said --

puplils were fixed which means -- which is a gign of brain
dead. Pupils were fixed and dilated. So I look through

her pupils, and I see hemorrhages in her retina which

means -- which is so very specific of this kind of injury.

0. What kind of injury is that?

a. Being a shaken baby. Retinal hemorrhages.

[ T
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Nothing else causes that, and I said, oh, wmy God.” And
next baby's diaper had been taken off and they were trying
to do a rectal temperature on the babky.
Q. You were thére when.they first did that?
A. Yes. Yes.
Q. Okay.
A. And I said, "Did anybody see this." And they
all are just trying to intubate, and I said who brought
the baby in. And that's when I said nobody --
Q. Let me sgtop you just a second., You zaid who
all -- did anybody see this. What were you talking about?
A. The rectal tear.
Q. Would you tell us what you observed about the
rectal area.
A Right. Baby was -- baby was bleeding from her
rectum and her opening was dilated, and I could see a tear
around about twelve o'clock positioﬁ if I remember right.

BY MR. HARPER: May 1 approach the witness, Your
Honor?

BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.:
RY MR. HARPER:
Q. Dr. Dar, I am going to hand you -- Dar. Excuse
Fe. Dr. Dar, I'm going to hand you what's been marked as
State's Exhibit 5-which purports to be a photograph of the
baby's rectal area shortly after her death.
A Right.
Q. Would you tell us, does that appear to be an
injury that you observed that night?

A. Right. This is the back. This is the spinal

Direct Examination - Dar 416

.
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Direct Examination - Dar 417
area. So you're looking at twelve o'clock tear right

here. |

Whexre is the tear?

Right this one.

Okay.

oo B0

This is actually an autopsy picture. So they
have cleaned up the baby.
Q. It was messier than thig?

A Oh, vyes.

Q. But that is fairly and accurately
representative --

A, Fairly.

0 ~- of the tear that you saw?

A. Fairly. That’'s not normal.

Q And I assume -- had the others already seen that

prior to you seeing it?

A. My guess is this all happened around about the
same time. They were taking the diaper off.

Q. So you wére-there when they actually tock the
diaper off? |

A. Right. Right.

Q. 8o you saw when they did it?

A. Right. Right. And we noticed some bruises on
her thighs, like, almost like long, linear bruises like --
my quess would be somebody was holding her there. This is
my guess. I don't know.

Q. These tears and this condition of this rectal
area that you described, whaﬁ's that indicative of, Dr.

Dar?
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Direct Examination - Dar ' 418
A. . Sexual abuse. Foreign object was inserted in
her rectum forcibly and that can cause.
Q. Now, you mentioned some bruises on her legsg?
A. On her thighs.
BY MR. HARPER: May I approach again, Your
Honoxr?
BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.
BY MR. HARPER:
Q. Let me show you what's been marked as State's
Exhibit 4 which again is a photograph. I believe an -- I
believe this photograph was at the hospital.

AL This looks like the hospital.

Q. Is there anything in there that looks --
T A. See, they're pointing at it right thexe.
Q. Yes, ma’am.
A. That looks like a linear bruise. If vou kind of

positioy the baby, somebody was forcibly holding her like
that on her thighs.

Q. Yes, matam. Okay. If you would, Dr. Dar,
continue to tell -- after you observed this, what, if
anything, did you do and/or observe of the baby?

A, Right. By then, baby was already intubated, and
I think two other doctors went behind me, if I am right,
to look in her eyes, and both noticed the same thing and

Q. When you say two other doctors, would that have
been doctor ~- .

A. Would Be Dr. Pattexrson and Dr. Cadle, I think.

If I am right.
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Direct Examination - Dar 419

Q. Okay.

A, And they both -- I said did you see these.

They said yeah. We see the same thing you saw, retinal
hemorrhages, and then next we talked about how bad the
injury was on her genitalia, and at that time either I
said that or I told Dr. Patterson, and we called the
police and nobody could leave the emergency room. And
then we went back to her resuscitating the baby. We got
her stable. If you look at her EKG tracing, when she came
in, it's flat, and we gave her epinephrine twice or three
times through her tube and IV,

Q. That's pretty strong stuff, isn‘t it?

A. Pretty strong. And babies -~ a baby that age,
their organs are not like ours. They are new. Everything
responds nicely to that medication. So we got a nice
rhythm on her. At that point, I got on the phone and I
was going to arrange for a helicopter to come get the
baby .

Q. For what purpose, Br. Dar?

A. Because we suspectéd head trauma and
inter-cranial bleed, and this would be something that if
the baby survives, would need maybe a neurosurgeon so --

Q. Going to airlift hexr somewhere?

A Right. 8o I called Jackson and they were on
diversion. They were full, and I called New Orleans on
the phone, and they were going to send a helicopter. At
this point, while I was making these phone calls, baby was
stable. We got heartbeat. By stable, I mean we had a

nice rhythm there. Nice bounding pulses. One of the
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Direct Examination - Dar 420
nurges, and I don't remember which one it was, came to me
while I was on the phone. She has again gone back into
the asystole --

Q. Flat line?

A. Flat line. Went back there and basically what
had happened was the bleeding in her head -- she had bled
so much that her brain had herniated. You have a small
hole at the base of the skull, if you look at the sgkeleton
part. Basically there's like a small hole at the base of
the skull. It just kind of dropped down, and kind of she
exploded. She had CSF, which is fluid around the brain
leaking from hex ears, from nostrils. At that point,
there is no point in saving it. So within Five minutes,
we declared her.

Q. And I believe you were the one that actually
made the decision?

A I was the one and then Dr. Cadle and Patterson
were in agreement. So that's yhat happened.

Q. Okay.

BY MR. HARPER: The Court will indulge me just
one moment, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: Yeg, sir.

(Mr. Harper and Mr. Rosenblatt confer.)

BY MR. HARPER: We'll tender this witness at
this time, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: Cross-examination.

BY MR. CLARK: We don’'t have any questions of
this witness, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: You may step down.
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Direct Examination - Lee 421
Both sideg --
BY MR. SERMOS: Release her?
BY THE COURT: -- release her?
BY MR. HARPER: Yes, sir.
BY THE COURT: You'll be released from your
subpeena. You may go.
{Witngss steps down.)
| BY THE COURT: How lengthy is your next witness
going to be?
BY MR. HARPER: Should be fairly short. We're
going to call Reverend Lee. |
BY THE COURT: Let’s go ahead and take Reverend
Lee before we take a break.
JAMES LEE,
~having been duly and legally sworn, answered
questions on his cath as follows, to-wit:
BY THE COURT: Have a seat.
BY MR. HARPER: May I proceed, Your Honor.
BY THE COURT: Yes, sir
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. HARPER:
Q. Would vou state your name for the record,
please, sir.
A. James E. Lee.
Q. And, Reverend Lee, you're the duly elected
coroner of Adams County, Mississippi?
A. Correct.
Q. How long have you served in that capacity?

A, January 1, 2000.
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that correct, sir?
A That's right.

Q. Did you have

A. I did.

that night?

Q. What did you
what type of caée they
was a --

the person said.

BY THE COURT:

Direct Examination - Lee 422

Q. And I believe you have some training in the
medical field; is that right?

A. That's right.

Q. Would vou tell us what training you have?

A. I am emergency medical technician, immediate,

and certified respiratory therapist.
Q. Okay, sir. Reverend Lee, obviously you were

serving in that capacity on February the 21st of 2002; is

occasion to be called out or have a

report made to you about a minor child, infant child,

Chloe Madison Britt, on that particular evening?

Q. Would vou tell us about how you received that

call and what you did as a result of it? Were you at home

A, I was at home that night and was contacted by
Natchez Community Hospital emergency room. One of the

physicians or supervisors called me.

do after you received that call?

A. Well, first of all, not to be apprised as to

had, and the nurse -- the nursge

that called me -- the physician that called me said this

BY MR. SERMOS: Objection, Your Honor. Whatever

He stated he got to the hospital.

We don't need to know what the person said.

I'll sustain as to hearsay.




LASERDOND FORM A @) PENGAD - 3-000-621- 8040« W PG com

10

11

12

13

14

15

1

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

‘26

27

28

29

Direct Examination - Lee | 423
BY MR. HARPER: |

Q. Reverend Lee, you won't be able to testify about
what anybody told you, but as a result of that

conversation, what, if anything, did you do at that time?

A. There was a death call.
0. Okay. You were advised that there was a death?
A. Yes.

Q. And when that happens, what procedure do you
follow?

A. I immediately went te the hospital.

Q. Okay. And would you tell us what happened when
you got to the hospital?

A. Well, when I got to the hospital, I went through
my normal protocol as to what I am going to do as far as
investigating the death. Before even seeing the decedent,
there's a series of interviews by whoevexr, whoever has
already come in contact with the child. I intervieﬁed'
them so they can tell me what they seen, what they heard,
and- then I will make an examination for myself.

Q. Okay. Would that include the medical personnel?

A 'Certainly.

Q. And you talked with those that were there?

A I did.

Q. Would that include any family or people that
were with the child when it came to the hospital?

A. I did speak to the grandmothexr, I think,
somewhere before I left the hospital.

Q. Pid you have occasion to talk to the defendant

in this case, Jeffrey Keith Havard, at any point in time?

I IR T
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A. Didn't know him. I didn't see him.

0. Was he even there to your knowledge when you
were there?

A. Not to my knowledge.

Q. You said you did then make an examination of the
body?

A I aid.

Q. All right, sir. Would you tell us where that
examination occurxeg?

‘A. In the Natchez Community Hospital emergency
room, the last xroom on the right side. I don't know the
number, hut it was there.

0. And I assume at this point in time, the baby had
already been declared to be deceased; is that right?

A. From the interview with the physician, the baby
was already pronounced Qead.

Q. Was anyone in the room with the baby when you
observed it? |

A, Wwhen I went into the room, Major Manley was
standing at the door. I can't remember if anyone elsg was
in the room, but from the sheriff's department, Major
Manley was standing inside of the door.

Q. Where was the baby? Was its -;

A. The baby was lying in the bed on a ventilator.
0. Was anybody trying to treat the baby at that
point or --

A. You know, there had to have been a nurse there.
T think a nurse was there and a respiratory therapist

standing by.

Direct Examination - Lee : 424
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Direct Examination - Lee _ : 425

0. And just tell us what observations, if any, you
made of the body at this time?

A. Well, when it was determined that the baby had
been declared or pronounced dead, I then went into the
room fully to look at the child. BAnd what I saw in this
child was vexry unusual for a child this age, and then I
knew that a more thorough investigation was neceséary.
Because there was bruising in the face of the child and
also there --

BY MR. HARPER: May I approach the witness,

Your Honor?

BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.
BY MR. HARPER:

Q. I'll show you &hat's been marked as State's

Exhibit 6, which is a photograph of the child taken

shortly after its death. Is this indicative of what you

saw that night?

A, That's exactly what I saw that night.

- Q. Okay, sir. And you saw those bruises. What, if
anything, else did you see?

A. You know, we do a head to toe examination so
we -- although the baby was being ﬁentilated at the time,
they were other areas such as the arm and the abdomen and
the lower trunk that were available for examination and
begin to look -- at the inner thigh, there also were some
bruising on the baby.

BY MR. HARPER: May I approach again, Your

Honor?

BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.

iy
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Direct Examination - Lee 426
BY MR. HARPER:

Q. Did you attempt to have any photographs yourself
made on that particular evening?

A. Certainly.

Q. Qkay, sir. I am going to show you what's been
marked as State's Exhibit 4 and ask 1f you recognize that
photograph?

A. That's my finger and that's me pointing --

Q. This is you right here?
A. That's me. That's me pointing at those bruises
on the -- which is very uncommon for a child that age.

Q. Okay, sir. What else, if anything, did you
observe about the baby?

A, Well, in the interview with the physician and
the interview that I had with the physician are secret in
which we talk about the case, there were gome injuries to
the rectum of the child. And at this point, I made the
decision aftexr I saw the rectum or the perineum which is
the surrounding around the rectum that something terribly
wrong is here. I made that decision, and at that time T
ordered everyone out of the room. No one else touched the
baby except me.

Q. Okay, sir. And just briefly tell us what you
obgserved about that rectal area?

A. It's -- it appeared that something had
penetrated the baby's anus.

Q. And that was your visual observations --

A On my wvisual observation.

Q. Okay. What, if anything, did you do after you

bl
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Direct, Examination - Lee 427

had cleared the réom and dealt with the baby yourself?
Whaﬁ, if any, decision did you --

A There was some decision about whether or not
this child would be an organ donor. 1 then called in Dr.
Chris Hancock who is a sworn deputy coroner, and I asked
for Chris' opinion as t¢ whether or not we should allow
this child to be a donor and we did not -- |

BY MR. SERMOS: Objection, Your Honox., This is
not probative to the matter that's at hand here
before the Court about organ donation.

BY THE COURT: I sustain as to relevancy as to

that.

BY MR. HARPER:

Q. Did you make a decision as to what, if anything,
to do aé far as investigating --

A, We made a decision to have an autopsy done.

Q. Okay, sir. When you did that, what steps did
you take to assure that would take place?

A. First of all what we had to do to m%ke sure
that everything that was surrounding the child was
carefully packaged with the child and that the child was
packaged and sealed, and when I say sealed, I wmean covered
and taped and making sure everything that came in with the
child, went to the autopsy with the child. I personally
did that myself.

Q. Okay, sir. And after you had done that, who did
you determine to have this autopsy perfdrmed by?

A. I called Dr. Stephen Hayne who is a forensic

pathologist in Jackson.
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Direct Examination - Lee _ 428

Q. I believe he works with the state medical
examiner's office.

A. He is one of the state designated pathologists
who do most of the autopsies in the State of Mississippi.

Q. And he's in -- is he in Hinds County?

A. He works in Rankin County Hospital, but he does
autopsies at Pearl, Mississippi, at the morgue.

Q. Okay, sir. And how was the baby transported to
the morgue? )

A The baby was -- first of all, the baby left the
hospital in the coroner's van, and, again, it's very
important at this point that nbbody handle bodies that are
going to be autopsied except the coroner, not EMT's, not
doctors, but the coromer. I transported the baby to the
morgue myself and placed the baby in the moxgue éooler.
Called Mississippi Moxrtuary Service for Dr. Hayne to have
the baby transported to Jackson.

Q. Wag the baby transported there?.

A. It was. There is documentation all the way as
to when the baby was released from the morgue, who picked
the baby up, and who brought the baby back.

Q. And to your knowledge was an autopsy performed
by Dr. Hayne?

An autopsy was performed.

Do you know the date of that autopsy?
I would have to refer to my notes.

Do you have them with you?

Yes, sir.

S T O S

You can do that if you would.
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BY THE COURT: You'll be allowed to refer to

your notes.

A, The autopsy was done on the evening -- autopsy
was done on the evening of the 22nd.

Q. So it would have been the next day?

A. Right.

0. Actually by the time everything was done, it
would have been the same day just later that day.

A. Later that day. Right.

BY MR. HARPER: The Court will indulge me just

a moment? We'll tender this witness at this time.

BY THE COURT: Crosg-examination.
BY MR. SERMOS: Yes, sir.
CROSS-EXAMINATION

Q. Yes. Dr. Lee, you state that you
invegtigate --

A. . I'm not a doctor.

Q. Oh, they called you that.

BY MR. HARPER: I think I may have inadvertently
done that.
BY MR. SERMOS:

Q. I was just trying to go along with the
promotion. Thank you: Anyway, Coroner Lee, you said you
investigate and one of the ways you do that is interview
people, right?

A, Sure.

0. Did you ever -- and you also go to the scenes
where people are killed or crime scenes or if you think

there's a crime?

ke L Bt
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A. Ninety-nine point nine percent of the time.

pid you go to the wmobile home at 33 Montgomery

Road?

A, I did not.

Q. You did not go there?

A. No, sir.

Q. Why didn't you go there?

A. That's not my job. That's for law enforcement.

Q. I thought you just said you did go to the crime
scene?

A. Well, I go to the crime scene if the body is
there.

Q. Oh, okay. So, in other words, if you

investigate something, you investigate where the body is,
not where you think something might have happened.

Al It depends on the situation. Every case is
different.

Q. And this case is different enough, then, that
you Saw no reason or had no authority to go to the mobile
home at 33 Montgomery Road?

A. Not after I had talked with Major Manley who is
a representative of the gheriff's department who told me
that that is the part of their job, and it is part of
their job to make that investigation.

Q. Okay. So then you investigate with limitations
then; is that right?

A. My job is to‘make a decision on the manner and
khe cause of death.

0. So then your investigation ends once you

430

PP
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Cross-Examination - Lee _ 431
determine that, right? The manner and cause --
A. Basically what the State allows me to do. To
make a determination on the manner and the cause of death.
Q. So if there's other facts there, then it's up

for someone else to find out, right?

A Who do you mean by somebody else?
Q. The sheriff's department or somebody else?
A. That's a good agency.

BY MR. SERMOS; Thénk you. No further any
questions.

BY THE COURT: Any redirect?

BY MR. HARPER: ©No, Your Honor. I believe
that's all we have.

BY THE COURT: Would this witness be released by
both sides?

BY ME. HARPER: Yes, sir.

BY MR. CLARK: Yes, sir.

BY MR. SERMOS: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: All right. Reverend Lee, you'll
bé released under your subpoena.

(Witness steps down. )

BY THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, it's about
time to take a break. Let's take about a ten to
fifteen minute break. Keep in mind what the Court
said previocusly about no contact with anybody. So
court will be in recess.

(After a short recess from 2:45 until 2:55, the following
was made of record, to-wit:)

BY THE COURT: Who does the State call as your
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Direct Examination -~ Brown 432
next witness?
BY MR. HARPER: Your Honor, we would call Deputy
Ray Brown with the sheriff'é department.
BY THE CQURT: Deputy Ray Brown.
RAY BROWN,
having been duly and legally sworn, answered
questions on his oath as follows, to-wit:
BY THE COURT: You may have a seat.
BY MR. HARPER: May I proceed, Your Honor?
BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. HARPER:
Would you state your name, please, sir.
A. Ray Brown.
And, Deputy Brown, with whom are you employed,
sir?
A Adams County Sheriff's Department.
Q. Okay. I believe you're also one of the three

constables for Adams County, duly elected; is that right,

9ir?

A, That's correct.

Q. Now, how long have you worked with the sheriff's
department, Deputy Brown?

A. Thirteen years.

Q. You were obviously working with the sheriffis
department back in February of this year, wore
cpecifically on February the 21st of 2002?

A. That's correct.

Q. Did you have occasion to respond to a call to

NPT ES

R S
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Direct Examination - Brown 433
the hospital?

A. Yeg, I did.

Q. Wouldhyou tell us, first of all, you were
obviously working that night?

A Yes, sir.

Q Where wefe you when you first got this call?

A. We was patrolling the county.

Q Out in the éounty?

A Yes, sir.

Q. Do you remember how far you were from the
hospital when you got the call?

A. Not to be exact.

Q. And once you got the call, what, if anything,

did you do at that point in time?

A We received the c¢all and went to the hospital.
Q. Were you by yourself or with --
A. I was. by myself in my patrol car.

Q. Okay. And you procee&ed directly to the
hospital in your patrol car?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Who, if anyone, was there when you arrived
there from the gheriff's department?

A. Officer Frank, he was on his way. We got there

basically pretty much the same time.

Q. Pretty much the same time?
A. Yes, gir.
Q. And were any other officers there prior to y'all

getting there?

A. Yeah. The reason we were going there because

A B e i
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Direct Examination - Brown 434
the Natchez PD had gave the call to our department in
reference to an incideht that was at the hospital, and
they was on -- was there when we got there.

Q. They had responded initially until they found
out it might be out in the county; is that right?
A. That's correct.
Q And that's when they called y'ail in?
A. Yes, sir.
Q Okay. And you say you and Deputy Frank got
there about the same time. What did y'all do when you got
there?
A, When we got to the hospital, we met the officer
that was on there at that time which I think was Officex
Baldwin.
Q. Johnny Baldgin, Roosgevelt --
A. Yes, sir.

-- Baldwin.
A. Right. &And I asked him what was going on, what
the situation-they had.
Q. Of course, you can't testify about what he
said, but after you talked to him, what, if anything, did
you do at that time?
| A Then I obtained -- talked to the mother of
the -- the mother, a Ms. Britt.
Q. And you talked to her?
A. Yes, sir. First, initiaily.
Q. Okay. And did any other officers from the
pheriff's department arrive while you were talking with

her or subsequent thereto?

1y o el s e B e L
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A.
Q.
a.

Q.

Officer Frank.
Did anybody else? Any of the --
No, sir.

Major Manley, did he ever come out there while

you were there?

A
Q
A.
Q

this.

No, =ir.
So you talked to Ms. Britt?
Yeg, sir.

Now, again, you can't -- well, let me ask you

Was the defendant, Mr. Havard, present when you

talked to her?

A..

Not right where we was at, but he was there at

the hospital.

Q.
A.

Q.

He couldn't hear what y'all were saying?
No, sir.

So you can't testify about what she told you,

but after yoﬁ talked to her, what, if anything, did you do

at that point in time.

Al
Q.
AL
Q.
point?
was he?

A.

L SO S

At that point, I went where Mr. Havard was.
And did you talk with him?
Yeg, sir.

What conversation did you have with him at that

At this point, he wasn't under arrest or anything,

No, sir. HNeo, sir. Another officer was there.
Who was that?

I can't recall his name at the moment.

One of your deputies?

No, sir. It was a police officer.

e
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Direct Exawmination - Brown 436
Q. Police officer.

A, Yes, sirx. He was sitting there with him.

Q. And just tell us what happened when you went

over there where Mr. Havard was.

A, I was standing there, talking to the officer in
reference to what was going on and given some

information -- he give me the information on where they
live and stay and this because it was in the county for

that purpose --

Q. I believe 33 Montgomery Road out in Cloverdale?

A. Yes, sir. That's correct.
Q. Okay .

a. All right. Then after we got through with the
conversation, the officer was standing there -- like I
said, we just stood there and just talking to the
gentleman sitting there.

Q. So you were talking with the officer when Mr.
Havard was present.

Al Right. He was just present. Aand then I left
Lo go over to -- by the emergency room to £ind out exactly
yhat wags the status of what was going on.

Q. Okay. Did Mr. Havard say anything to you when
you were over there the first time when you were talking
Fo the officex?

A. Not at -- right at the moment. No, sir.

Q. So you went over to talk to who after you left
Fhat conversation?

A I walked back.over toward the emergency room to

bee what else was going on.

et b by o e
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Direct Examination - Brown . 437

Q. Okay.

A. And then once the other officer, Frank --
Officer Frank was there. He talked to the people that was
over fhere. So I told him I was going to go back over
where Mr. Havard was for the time being because of what
the situation was at the time.

Q. What happened when you went back over there
where he was?

A. Then aftexr -- which once we after -- not
determined what had happened, but actually what was going
on, and I told Mr. Havard that we were going to have to
take him to the office. A

Q. To talk to him?

A Yes, sir,
Q. Okay.
A And he asked the question was he going to be

undey arrest. I teld him, no. He's not under arrest.

‘|We're just detaining you, and in the process he said I

need to go home before we go down to the -- where you're
going to take me. And I said, well, no. You can't go

home at the moment. He said, "I need to go and take a

shower first before I go down there." T said not at this
time.

Q. He wanted to go take a shower?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. So you told him he couldn't do that at that
point.
A. So I told him he couldn't do it. I said, well,

we're going to take you to the office, and he got kind of

a8 U P
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upset about it thaﬁ we were going Lo take him to the
office and wanted to know why we was: detaining him and
what was going on, but I just told him for now, we're just
going to detain you. 2and I, myself, and Officexr Frank
took him to wy car, and we put him in the car. bDidn't
arrest him, but we put him in the car.

T Q. Okay. 2and then who took him to the sheriff's
cffice?

A. I did.

Q. And did he say anything to you while you were
riding to the sheriff's office?

A. He kept asking the question what was going on,
i s gomething wrong with the baby, or why I am being
detained, and he kept saying he wanted to go home to --
back to where he was living at.

Q. Did he --

A. I told him I couldn't take him back there.

r'11 have to take you to the sheriff's department.

Q. bid he say anything else about taking a shower?
A Yepah. He mentioned about the shower --

Q. Again?

A He wanted -- because he was nasty, and he wanted
Lo clean up before he go down to the office. I said that
Wouldn't be necessary.

Q. That seemed to be the most important thing on
his mind, taking a shower?

A. At that moment.

Q. Once you got to the station, what did you do at

Fhat point?

—
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A. We put him in a room where we detained him. We
just kept him under observation. |
Q.- Did you stay there with him, or did you do
something else at that point?

A. At that point, 1 went over to the cther side to
start on the report and contact superiors in reference to
what was going on, what we had. Before we left .-
actually before we left the hospital, we contactéd a
superior to advise what steps we need to take at the
moment, and that's the reason why we detained him.

Q. Were vou sent to do anything else in this
particular case after you had transported Mr. Havard, and
I think you said you were over there doing -- working on
your reports. Did you have anything else that you did
that night?

A Yes, we did. I sat in on the investigation

with the -- Ms. Britt.

Q. In the interview.

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Okay .

A. Aand after --

Q. Who conducted that interview that you sat in

bn?

A. The sheriff and John Manley.

Q. Okay. and what happened aftexr that?

A. After that, we got permission to go to the
residence of the location where the incident occurred.
Q. That's 33 Montgomery Road.

A That's correct.

'
)
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Q. Did you go to that address yourself?

A Yes, I did.

Q And that was on that same evening --
A. Yes.

Q -- or early morning hours?

A Early morning hours. Correct.

0. And what did you find at that address? What's
located there?
A It was a trailer at that location.

BY MR. HARPER: May I approach the witness, Your
Honor?

BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.
BY MR. HARPER:
Q. I'11 show you what's been marked as State's
Exhibit Numbexr 3, Deputy Brown, and ask if you can
identify what's in that photograph.
A. That's the trailer that we went to that early
norning.
Q. 33 Montgomery Road.
Aa. Yes, sir.
Q. That's the one you went to?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Okay, sir. And what, if anything, did you do
bnice you arrived at that trailer?

A. Well, first, basically it come to be somewhat of

§ crime scene and to go in to collect evidence.

0. Okay. Now, do you have any special duties that

you perform for the sheriff's department that some of the

bthers don'ﬁ do?

[eere
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A. That's correct.

Q. What would that be, Deputy Brown?

A. I have a background in architect engineering,
which is drafting. Upon approaching the scene, I took a
couple of pads to draw a diagram of the crime scene.

Q. And did you subsequently prepare a diagram of
the trailerx?

A, That 's correct.

Q. And you see on this easel here, this is what's
marked as State's Exhibit 1. Is that, in Ffact, the
diagram that you made of the trailer layout?

A. That's correct.

Q. Okay. And you have the dimensions on it. Would
it be exactly to scale or --

A. It is just to scale.

Q. Okay. Now, while y'all were at the trailer, you
said y'all did collect some evidence. Who was primarily
doing that?

Al Myself, Officer Frank, thn Manley, and Officer
Coleman was there, who all was there.

Q. Who was taking custody of what y'all --

A. Officer Manley basically.

Q. Okay. So he would have been the one that
handled whatever y'all collected there?

A. That's correct.

0. Okay, sgir. Now, you testified invelving one
Fefﬁrey Havard, Jeffrey Keith Havard. 1Is he present in
the courtroom today, the person that you talked about?

A, That's correct. He is.

Direct Examination - Brown 443

P




LASERBONDECAIAA &) PENOAD + 1:800-B31-8089 « www.pengad.com

1

Cross-Examination - Brown 442

Q. Would you peoint him out and describe what he's

2 ”wearing for me, please, Deputy Brown.
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A. Wearing a blue suit.

BY MR. HARPER: Your Honor, we'd ask that the
recoxd reflect that the witnesg has identified the
defendant, Jeffrey Keith Havard.

BY THE COURT: Let the record so reflect.

BY MR. HARPER: The Court will indulge me just a
moment .

(Mr. Harper and Mr. Rosenblatt confer.)

BY MR. HARPER: We'll tender this witness at
this time, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: Cross-examination.

CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. SERMOS:
Q. Yes. Deputy, you made that -- you went to that
scene at 33 Montgomery Road; is that right?
That's correct.
Did you take any photographs there?

I didn't.

LO R & B

- All right. Wwhen you drew this to scale, is that
#ased ont information you personally gathered when you went
Fhroughout that mobile home.

A. That's correct.

0. aAnd when you were thereidoing this, did you do
any, shall we gay, collecting evidence or searching around
xourself?

A. I assgisted.

0. You assisted. All right. Did you yourself --

- L]
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did you lock for any particular items? In other words,
did anybody tell you to look for any particular items?
A, Basically at the crime scene, it's whatever is
obvious. TI'l11 put it that way. A lot of things that they
look for due to circumstances.
Q. Do you remember going in the bathroom at the far
end of the trailer which would be on the right as you face
that diagram? Do you remember going through the bathroom.
A. - I went in the whole part of the house.
Q. Okay. Did you ever make a determination if
anybody in that bathroom had ever taken a bath in the
hprevious féw hours? '
A, No, I didn't.
Q. Aand also you said that Mr. Havard asked about
wanting to go home and take a shower. He didn't get to go
take a shower, did he?
A, ‘ No, sir. He didn't.
Q. Thank you.
BY MR. SERMOS: WNothing further, Your Honor.
BY THE COURT: Any redirect?
BY MR. HARPER: None, Your Honor.
BY THE COURT: You may step down.
{(witness steps down.)
BY MR. HARPER: Your Honor, we'd ask that this
witness be released.
BY THE CQURT: He'll be releared on the
subpoena. All right. Who does the State call as
your next witness.

BY MR. HARPER: Call Deputy Buddy Frank, Your

ot et g A
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Direct Examination - Frank 444
Honor.
BY THE COURT: beputy Buddy Frank.
BUDDY FRANK,
having been duly and legélly sworn, answered
qgquestions on his oath as follows, to-wit:
BY MR. HARPER: May I proceed, Your Honor?
BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. HARPER:
Q. Would vou state your name for the record,
please, sir.
A Buddy Frank.

Q. And, Deputy Frank, with whom are you employed,

chiary

A. Adams County Sheriff office.

Q. How long have you worked at the sheriff office,
PDeputy?

Aa. Since the '98.

Q. Okay, sir. And in what capacity are you
employed there?

A, I'm deputy sheriff.

Q. Now, I want to dirxect your attention, Deputy
Frank, back to the evening of February 21 of 2002, and ask

i £ you had occasion to be working on that night, on that

evening.
A, I did.
Q And what type of work were you doing?
A. I was on patrol work that night.
Q Would ask whether or-not you received a call or
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Direct Examination - Frank _ 445
repqrt concerning an incident involving & child at the
hospital on that particular evening.

A. That 's correct.

Q. Do you recall where you were when you received
that report?

A. I really don't recall.

Q. Were you in the car --

A, I was in my car, but I don't recall what part
of the county.

Q. Okay, sir. And where was the report indicating
that this child was?

A. At Community Hospital.

Q. And what, if anything, did you do after you
received the call?

A, I went to the call, myself and Deputy Brown and
once --

Q. When you say you went with him, were y'all in
the same car?

4. No, we weren't. No, we weren't.,

Q. But you responded?

Right. I responded along with Deputy Ray

Brown.
Q. And do you recall which one, if either one of
you, got there first, or did both of you get there --

A. We both got -- if I recall right, we got there
about the same time.

Q. Okay. And what, if anything, did you find when
you got there?

A. Found Officer Johmnny Baldwin. He was the PD

L]
et A ———
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officer that they told us to contact at Natchez Community,
and once we got there, he explained --

0. You can't testify about what he told you --

A. Ckay.
Q. He told you what the situation was?
A Right. He gave me a run down on what the

situation was at the time.

Q. What, if anything, did you do after vyou talked
%ith him?

A I don't understand.

0. After you talked with him, did you do anything

in regard to this investigation?

A. Sure.

Q- Ckay .

A. I mean, conce we talked with him, we wént inside
and found out who the mother was. We found out -- you

know -- where everybody lived and to that matter, and then
when the doctors came out and advised us that the baby was
Head, then we took the -- Jeffrey Britt into -- we just

Hetained him for gquestioning because --

Q. You said Jeffrey Britt. You mean Jeffrey
Havard.
A. Jeffrey Havard. 1 am sorry. We detained him

hecause he was supposed to have been alone with the baby
| ast.

Q. Did you see Mr. Havard at the hospital when you
got --

A. Yegs. He was in the waiting room.

Q. Did you have occasion to talk with him at the
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hospital?

A. We didn't really talk to him at the hospital.
Once we foupd out that the baby had deceased, we detained
him immediately.

Q. What, if'aﬁything, did you do at the hospital,
if anything, at that point in time?

A. After we had detained him?

0. Right.

A. I contacted Major Manley and made sure the
coroner was on the way. Once the coroner got there, we’
took photos of the baby and -~ {(pause}

Q. You asgisted in takiqg those photos at the --

A. Right. Correct.

Q. -- hospital. Ckay. Mr. Havard, you said he had
been detained. Did y'all detain him at the hospital?

A. Yes. We detained him at the hospital. Deputy
Ray Brown brought him back to the sheriff's office.

Q. Where were you when Deputy Brown brought him
back to the sheriff's office?

A. I stayed at the hospitall

Q. Did any other officers arrive out there after
you --

A. Major Manley arrived out there. Sheriff Ferrell
arrived out there.

Q. Okay. Did you do anything else out there other
than just basically secure --

A. I secured the scene and just helped take
photos.

Q. Okay. 2and you tock photographs --

e S i
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A. Right. I took Polarcids of the baby. The 35's
and all that stuff was taken by Major Manley.

Q.  Now, after you had completed what you did at the
hospital, what, if anything, did you do at that point in
time?

A, We went back to the sheriff's office, and I got

back to the sheriff's coffice, and the sheriff advised us
to.remove the clothing off of Mr. Havard, which we did.
ygelf and Deputy Coleman and Deputy Brown and secured it
for evidence, and myself and Major Manley questioned Mr.
Havard just to kind of get a brief overview of the events
that taken place that night in his words and --

Q. Okay. Now, when you talked to him, first of
all, did -- just tell me how that went down. What did
y'all do at that point in time?

A. We took him into the office, and we read him hisg
Miranda rights, and if I'm not mistaken, the next thing we
did was we got a consent to search of his trailer which
was at 33 Montgomery Road.

Q. When you say you read him his Miranda rights,
would you tell me what you mean by that?

A. Miranda xightg. That's the -- what I know as
what you got in your hand. What it is we read them their
rights. You have a right to remain silent. Anything vyou
ay can and will be -- all the way down, and then you have
n waiver of your rights at the end. You know, if you wish
to talk right now, you can. You know, if you don't; you ‘
don't have to. 1It's entirely up to you.

BY MR. HARPER: May I approach the witness, Your
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Honoxr?

BY THE COURT: Yes, you may.
BY MR. HARPER:

Q. T hand you a copy of a document and ask if
you'll look at that and tell me whether or not you can
identify that, please, sir.

AL That 's your Miranda rights.

Q. And is that a particular Miranda right? It's a
form?

A. Right. Right.

Q.- It'é got some writing --

Al Right. It's signed by Jeffrey Havard. That's

the form we read to him thakt night.

Q. Did he, in fact, sign he understood it?

A. Yes, sir. He did,

Q. And signed that he would waive it and talk to
you?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Who, 1if anyone, else signed that form?

A. Major John Manley.

Q. Who elge?

A. Jeffrey Havard, myself, and Major John Manley.

BY MR. HARPER: Your Honor, we'd move at this
time to introducé this into evidence.
BY THE COURT: Any objection?
BY MR. SERMOS: I just want to see what he's
exacktly holding there. We've got copies.
{(Mr. Sermos reviews document.)

BY MR. SERMOS: No objection.

TP
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BY THE COURT: The Court will allow the waiver

of rights to be introduced as Exhibit 16 in this

case.
DOCUMENT MARKED AS STATE'S EXHIBIT 16
BY MR. HARPER: May I approach again, Your
Honoxr?

BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.

BY MR. HARPER:

Q. I'm now going to hand you what's been marked as
State's Exhibit 16 and ask again, if you'll identify that

for me, please, sir,

A. It's interrogation. It's advice of rights.
Q. Okay.
A, It's the rights that you have.

Q. Would you tell me when you talked to Mr. Havard
rhat night exactly what you did with that form. How do
y'all go about doing that?

A. We lay the form on the table, and then we'll
read it to him. We'll read the first part, and we'll ask
him do you understand your rights, and they'll -- do you
have any questions. They'll ask. He didn't have any
Huestions. So we read the bottom half of it.

Q. That says what?

A. That's the waiver --

Q. Read the top half for us.

A, The top half says, "Before we ask you any
uestions, you must undergtand your rights. You have the
-ight to remain silent. Anything'you say ¢an be used

hgainst you in court. You have the right to talk to a
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